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A It's an aresthetic drug. Specifically it's a
hypnotic, it makes person go under general anesthesia.

C Fall asleep?

A Yes.

C Ckey. S0 —— and is it something you've used in
the past?

A Yes.

C Are vou very familiar with 1t?

A Yes.

C And when vou said sheort acting, how —— what are

we talking abcut?

A T is @ short acting medicine. The bcdy
metabolize and gets rid of it very rapidly, sc patients can
wake up very quickly afterwarcs.

C Is it appropriate to use in —— in a —- like an
outpatient surgical center for Iimited procedures?

A Yes.

o; The action —— I mean how quickly does it —- does
it start to work?

A 1+ starts work immediately, I wculd say within
10 seconds.

@ How -— and when you want to stop, wake somebody
up, I mean is there a big time lag or is it -=— 1s 1t also
equally quick?

A It depends on how much has been given to the
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patient when you want to wake the patient up.

C So are there a difference between the use of
that drug and —- in longer procedures than shorter procedures?
A In a long anesthetic procedure it 1s possible to

use propofol but you have to give it continuocusly thrcough a
intravenous infusion.

o, If you're just coing tc do it like we described
for le-'s say, for example, and you're going to —— you're ——
you know wnat we're here for right? 1It's about the things
that happened at the endoscopy center, correct?

A Yes.

C Sc in an endoscopy —— endoscopic procedure like
a coloroscopy or an EGD, an upper endoscopy, things like that,
would it appropriate to use for the entirety cof the procedure
in those cases?

A Yes.

C Are they short enough in duraticn that that
wouldn't be an issue with this hanging a drip and —— or a
continuous infusicn?

A The procedures are usually so short ycu can “ust

give irtermittent bcluses.

o Have you done those procedures before?

A Yes.

o In your experience dcing those procedures, about
what is the average amount of —-- of drug that you would give
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for one?

A For EGD, the upper GI tract endoscopy, 1
probably would give between five tc 10 ml, which is 50 to 100
milligrams of propofol. For the lower procedure, the
colonoscopy, 1 would probably give between 10 ml to 20 ml and
that's 100 milligram to 200 mil_igrams.

C And these kinds of procedures last typically how
long for that kind of anesthetic?

A The ECD, the upper endcscopy procedures usually
last between -— petween five to -- te 10 minutes and the lower

—— the colonoscopy will last between probably eight to 20

minutes.

C Okay. So that amount of drug for that amount of
time?

A Yes.

C 1f the procedures went longer than that would

tvpically you'd nave to use more drug?
A Yes.
C Now, I'm coing tc bring you forward te —-— do you

know ar individual by the name of Dipak Desal?

A Yes.

9] Do you see him in Court tocay?

A Yes.

o Can vou point to him, describe something that

he's wearing for the record, please?
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A He's sitting over there in the dark suit.

MR. STAUDAHER: Let the record reflect the identity
of the defencant, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It will. It will. 1I'm sorry, 1 muTbled.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o With regard to your involvement with this -- Dr.
Desai, when did you first meet him and if you ¢id, was it in a
social or work-related situation?

A I'm not certain about a date, obut I pelieve it
was in —— in -- in the late 1990s when I first had & chance to

meet Dr. Desai.

G Did you ever work with him?

A Yes.

@; Did you ever provide anesthesia services for
him?

A For his procedures, yes.

C Were these —— or what was the lccation where you

did this work?

A T believe I've done it at the Encescopy Center
at Valley Hospital and also I've done anesthesia for his
patients at the Endcscopy Center at 700 Shadow Lane.

C So the actual locaticn of where things happened
in this case?

A Yes.

Q So in the situation where you were actually in
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the hospital, were —— were things different than the way you
provided care or service in -- &t 700 Shadow Lane?

A It's pretty similer, but the 700 Shadow Lane I'm
referring to wes the old endcscopy center. They —— they later
moved the endoscopy center from one suite to ancther. I only
worked in the old one.

Q Okay. Anc what -- what time frame are we
talking about vear wise irn that regard?

A I would say between 1996 and the year 2001.

C How often did vou prcvide services for Dr. Desail

during that window of time?

A Probably cnce every six months.
o So these procedures, were they the same types of
things we're talking about, the colonoscopies and —-— and the

upper endoscopies?

A Those would be the procedures requiring my
service, vyes.

C Okay. When you worked with Dr. Desai, did you
—— were there any superviscr -- Or excuse me, were there any
CRNAs workinc in the clinic at the same tTime?

A No.

o Did you do any supervisoring -- Or SUpervisory
work for any perscn during the time you were working with Dr.
Desal during that window of time?

A No.
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C After 2001 did you continue to work for Dr.
Desai?

A As T recall I had —— I have not worked with him

C Now, in this particular case, was there a time
pericd though at some point that after 2001 that you had
discussions with Dr. Desai about maybe doing some supervisory

work for him in relation to him hiring some CRNAs?

A Yes.
C Can you tell us about that?
A There was a proposal for me to supervise CRNAS

and that he would hire the CRNAs put I would be agble to come

in and supervise their work and bill for their service.

C So let me understand that. You're going to bill
for the supervise —— for supervising directly?
A Yes, that's the industry custom. The

supervising M.D. anestheslologist bill for the work done by
the CRNAs peing supervised.

C So even though the CRNA's actually doing the
work, because you're supervising you bill for that work?

A Yes. And I —- I will take the clinical
responsibility for that work.

THE COURT: Do you bill at the physician's rate just
as if you were the doctor doing the service?

TYE WITNESS: No, there's a difference.
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THE COURT: It's a different rate. Okay.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:
®) And we'll get into that in just a minute but --
THE COURT: Sorry.
MR. STAUDAHER: No prcblem.

THE COURT: Jumped the gun.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o] But as far as that's concerned, this was —— was
this just talk or did it get formelized into anything more
i'than that?

A It was —- it was mostly just talk and later
there was attempts to put it on paper, but still it was not

very formal agreement or writing.

o I'm going to ask vou a gquestion in the future
from where you're at right now in 2001 or just past that and
then I'm going to come back. Okay? But at any point ever did
‘iyou ever go to the Shadow Lane camp -— Or Shadow Lane Clinic,
700 Shadow Lane, whether it was the old one or the new one,

L and ever supervise any CRNAS?

A Never.

o Did ycu krow that anybody was representing at
any point that you were a supervising physician for CRNAs?

JJ A No.

MR. STAUDAHER: Your Honor, may 1 approach this
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wltness?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. STAUDAHER: And I've previously shown this to
counsel, this is —-—

THE COURT: All right.

MR. STAUDAHER: -—- the [indiscernible] exnibit.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C I'm geing to show you a document, which is
labelec as State's 65 and on it there's kind cf & blank Do
you recognize that page?

A Yes.

C What is that?

A It's a blank anesthesia record.

C Okay. Anc then it lcoks like there's another

cne that's a colored one and that's when the Rates number
start. It's GJ Desal 474 and then there's two pages tThat

follow that, 468 and 46S. Dc you see that?

A Yes.

o Okay. Have you ever seen those last twe pages
i before?

A Yes.

o You've seen them both?

A Yes.

0 Now, when did you see these two documents?

A I saw them at the —— when I testify at a grand
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Jury.

Q Okay. Had vou seen any of them before that
point?

A I've seen this one befcre that.

C And the ore you're referring to is 468, you've

seen that one.

A Yes.
Q What about the one that's cepicted in 4657
A I den't recall seeing that one.

Q Okay.
MR. STAUDAHEK: Mav 1 puplish, Your Honor?
THE COURT: You may.

BY MK. STAUDAHER:

o Befcre we get thcse to go —- those agreements, 1

1 - . - . . .
want to make sure we're all talking about the same thing.

This 1s the first page of the exhibit anc vou said that this
was an anesthesia recorc; is that fair?

A Yes.

C What are we locking at here? Carn voua kind of
describe for us? There's & whcie bunch of boxes but vou can
—— can you tell us what we're lockinc at and -- and vcou can
draw on this screen with vyour fingernail. Just take vour
fingernail and do that and then you just tap it down here and

it goes away ——

A Okay .
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C -- 1f you need to do anything. Can yocu tell us
what we're locking at?
MR. SANTACROCE: Your Honocr, can we approach?
THE COURT: Sure.
(Off-record bench conference.)

BY MK. STAUDAHER:

C So can you describe for us —— first of all, 1is
this a fairly stendard form?

A Yes.

MR. SANTACROCE: Cbjection, Your Honor, relevance.

THE COURT: Okay, overruled.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

c Can you describe for us what -—- what it is? I
mean how —- what -- what the cifferent parts are.

A Ckay. This part s for us to reccrd the vital

signs, sucnh as blcod pressure and heart rate. And this part
is for us tc record the -- the vital signs that are more
advenced, such as pulse oximetry, [indiscernible: cafbon
dicxide, oxycen flow. And this part i1s for us to record the
medicaTtion used.

THE COURT: Is this kind cf a standarc universally
used form?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:
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Q And go ahead.

A And this part is to record what kind of an
airway device, alrway management we used, whether we put a
tube in the patient's trachea or Jjust somethinc in the
oropharynx to —— to maintain the airway. And this part is to
document the monitors used and the —— the invasive monitoring
device we used. This part here, anesthesiologist, is the
actual anesthesiologist. This part anesthesiclogist is the
actual anesthesiologist present doing the procedure and is
responsible for the procedure. This part is the —-- the
surgical procedure operation. This part is the surgeon, the
actual person that does the procedure. And this is the
patient infcrmeticn with —— there's usually & sticker or a
embossed print to put down the patient's name and other
information. And this here's to —— for us to put dcwn

remarks, any important things we want to reccord regarding the

procedure.

o What about this areaz right here?

A This is the time, the anesthesia time. There's
a beginning time and a —— & finisnh time.

e Okay. Ancd vou had mentioned that f yvou were
coming out to the clinic to do supervisory work for —— I mean

supervising a CRNA, that you would come out there and then you
would eventually bill for their services, correct?

A Yes.
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MR. SANTACROCE: Cbjection, foundaticn.

THE COURT: Overruled.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:
it o) So how is it that you bill for your services
with a -—— with a CRNA, how wculd you do that?

A First of all, here in this square we would put
down the CRNA's name and put a slash after his name or her
name and put down my name.

C So ¢cn an anesthesia record that ycu wculc have
supervised for we would have seen both names down?

MR. WRIGHT: I'm going to object —— I'm going to —

A Thet's what I would do and that's the industry
standard.

o Okay.

MR. WRIGHT: 1I'm going to object to the hypcthetical.

THE COURT: Well, it's not really being —-

M=X. WRIGHT: It didn't occur.

THE COURT: But I think that was the pcint of the
question, sc it's overruled. All right. And the court
recorder, Mr. Wright, 1s askirg that you speak up.
|

MR. WRIGHT: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. Gc on, Mr. Staudaher.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C So when you —- when you're billing for

anesthesia services, I mean how do you determine that —-— what
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do you -— what is the basis cf your bill?

A There's a standard codebook for different
procedures. Different procedures would have different number
of code and would have cifferent number of units. The more
complicated the procedure the more units the procedure will
represent, so that's one part. Ancther part is the time, how
rmuch time was used to provide cur anesthesia service.

MR. WRIGHT: I'm goirg to object. I thought this was
a hypothetical if he hac been hired to be a supervisor c¢f the
CRNAs —-

MR. STAUDAHER: It goes tc ——

THE COURT: Overruiec. Ycur cbjecticn 1s noted.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o So if it —- if a C —— 1if you were supervising a
CRNA, beside putting your name down next to the CRNA's, would
you use the informaticn, the time, as part of how ycu would
bill for that service?

A Yes.

THE COURT: So vou're billing at a different rate,
again, if ycu're a supervisor than if you're actually
performing the anesthesia itself?

THE WITNESS: Richt. I believe the —-

THE COURT: Anc the —-

THE WITNESS: -- rate is different.

THE COURT: Okay. And the rates are cifferent like
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if it's a prain surgery it's probably going tc be a higher
rate then maybe another kind of surgery?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

TAE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Is in part what —— the basis of theat cn what the
Judge Jjust asked you, because you get a base amount of times
cr units, sc to speak, and then you just add time tc that in
units?

A Yes.

C Okay. Anc what is the typical unit of
anesthes.a time?

A Fifteen minutes.

9 Okay. 1If you are billing anesthesia times —-- SO
you start cff with your base rate and whatever it 1s. Do you
kncw what *t is fcr a colonoscopy?

A I pelieve it's either five units or six units.

I C So let's say it's five. 1If you're at five units
for the base, vyou start off with that as the number and then
I for how riuch time vcou're in the room you add units on to that?

A Yes.

¢ The units are in 15-minute increments. Does
-,that mean that if you get to 16 minutes you can bill for two
increments?

A Some people do that, but I don't.
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Q Okay. If you got to — so just even a minute
into the next segment though you could legitimately bill if
you wanted to?

A Yes, some people would do that.

MR. WRIGHT: Judge, can we approach the bench?

THE, COURT: Yeah.

{Off-record bench conference.)
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Now, Doctor, I'm not going to ask vou
specifically about Certified Nurse Anesthetists, just your ——
| your involvement —— just your —— and your —— as & single
anesthesiologist what you do, what you would —-- what you think
lis right with regard to the things we're talking about. Okay?

A Okay.

“ MR. SANTACROCE: 1I'm going to object.
THE COURT: Well, let him —— let him ask the guestion

so we know what it is.
Il BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C First of ali, do vou as a —- as a doctor, if you
" were going to — to an encoscopy center and you were going to
pbill for a colonoscopy, the ways we've beer talking about, how
would you bill it?
| A I would bring a copy, Xerox copy of the

i anesthesia record and a copy of the patient's face sheet.

That's a piece of paper with the patient's home address, phone
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nunper, insurance information. We call that a face sheet. I
will bring a copy of that along with a copy of the anesthesia
record back to my office and give it to the billing service
for them to the bill the insurance company.

o Do you know —-—

MR. SANTACRCCE: Your Honor, I'm going to cbject to
move to strike the last answer.

THE COURT: Well, overruled for now. And then how
does that work? Your billing perscon looks at it and sees how
many —— how many minutes or whatever it took and then they
bill according to that and what the procedure was and is there
a code for ——

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: —- whatever the procedure was? So they
lock, oh, it wes cpen heart surgery, this is the code and it
was 17 minutes and then they bill according tc that? Is that
in a nutshell what happens?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Agein, your experience as far as -— dc vou know
the coces for colcnoscoples and upper encoscopies?

A I den't remember it.

o Okay. But that's something that is hcw ycu base
your bill off of, whatever the base unit is plus the time.

A Yes.
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C In doing the wcrk that you do, do yvou ever, you
know, 1f you've done a, let's say —— I mean ncw do you
calculate it? 1Is it face time with the patient? 1Is it —- is
it, you know, going in and talking tc them —— talking to them

before and coming back to the room? 1 mean, how do you
determine what the time is that you spenc with the patient?

A I don't charge for talking to the patient. I
charge starting the anesthesia time as the time the patient
comes into the prccedure room.

C And then what is it ——

THE COURT: Do you know if that's the industry
standard or if some people in the industry charge for, you
know, that initizl kind of precperative consultation?

THE WITNESS: I —— I —— I believe there are pecple
like that, vyes.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. STAULCAHER:

C But dc you know what the general industry
standard is for that?

MR. WRIGHT: He just asked and answered.

MR. STAUCAHER: He said that there were pecple that
did that, I acidn't ——

THE COURT: Well you can follcow up.

MR. STAUDAHER: That's what I'm trying to do, Your

Honor .
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M. WRIGHT: I want to voir dire him on being an
expert on pilling and the national standards.

MR. SANTACROCE: I join in that.

THE COURT: All right. Go ahead, Mr. Wright, if —
if we're going down that road.

MR. WRIGHT: What's your expertise on natiocnal
billinc stancards and the studies that have been done on them
for anesthesia time?

THE COURT: No one can hear you. And it was a
compounrd caestion so —-—

MR. WRIGHT: Okay.

THE COURT: -- state it ——

MX. WRIGHT: Did I hear an objection?

THAE COURT: No, but I -- since you have to restate
the cuesticn anyway.

MR. WRIGHT: Are you an expert on national billing
standards for anesthesiology?

T=ZE WITNESS: How dc vou define expert?

M=<. WRIGHT: Someone who kncws more than most people
in that area and have you written about it?

T=E WITNESS: No.

M:. WRIGHT: Published any articles?

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. WRIGHT: Read -- read studies about how

nationally cther CRNAs bill for their time?
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THE WITNESS: No.

MR. WRIGHT: Okay. And ycu've never —- you've —- as
I understand your testimony, you wcrked with some CRNAs when
you were a resident in San Diego back before 1993, correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. WRIGHT: And other than that, vou supervised for
four or five days in Los Angeles as a temp employee, correct?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
it MR. WRIGHT: And other than that, no expertise with
| CNRAs and how they compute their time and billing practices,
correct?

THE WITNESS: Correct.

MR. WRIGHT: I don't think he has ——

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Staudaher, vyou may

proeceec.

BY MKR. STAUDAHER:
C And T tolc vou I wasn't asking about CRNAs,
| correct? I'm asking about vcu.
A Yes.
C And you know the local market, not necessarily

the naZionel market; is that correct?

A Yes.
C Because you work here.
ll A Yes.
9; So locally here, what kind —— how do you
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determine time? How ——- how does —— how co generally the
anesthes:oloccists that you werk with in this community
determine time?

THE COURT: All right. Are you objecting, Mr.
Wright?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes.

THE COURT: 1Is that why —— I saw vou cet up. Ladies
and cert_emen, 1it's 3:31. We're gcing to just teke a quick
recess until 3:45. During the relatively quick recess, you're
reminded tnhat you're not to discuss the case or anything
relating to the case with each other or with anyone else.
You're not to read, watch, listen to any reports of or
commentaries on this case, any person or subject matter
relatirg to the case by any medium of informaticon. Please do
not do any independent research. Please do nct form or
express an cpinion on the case. Please place your notepads in
your crairs and fcllow the pailiff throuch the rear dcor.

(Jury recessed at 3:30 p.m.)

THE COURT: Doctor, as I'm sure you're surmise —
you've surmised, we're coing tc be arquing abcut some of your
testimeny that's going to be coming up. So I just ask vou,
you know, vyct can take a break if you need to use the
facilities or just have a seat in the vestibule. There's a
little conference room off there tc the side. Thank you, sir.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
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THE COURT: All right. Doces anyone have a copy of
the State's expert disclosure for the doctor? Thank vyou.
Approach. All right. Now obviously, he can testify as to
anvthing he did or did not do at the endoscopy center. We're
clear about that, I get it.

MR. SANTACROCE: Yes.

THE COURT: The point is his name was used and he
didn't do anything, you're fine with that. He can say, I
didn't do anything and if I had done something I would have
been in the patient's room and I would have dcrne my bill like
this and this bill wasn't done like that, so cbviouslv he
wasn't involved. We're all fine on that. The issue is him
testifying sort of as an expert regardinc billing practices.
Is that what you were trying to go with Dr. Yee?

MR. STAUDAHER: Well, I mean, not necessarily billing
practices in general. I mean, what he —- what we've listed
there for the things that he would testify abcut are
everything that an anesthesiclogist would do kecause we know
and anticipated that there wculd be cbjections at some point
1f we c¢ia nct disclese him in that capacity tc anvthing he
testified for other than what he directly was involved with in
this case. So when he's dealing with what he rormelly does in
his practice, how he would fill out one of thcse forms, how he
would normally bill and what he bases the bill off cf, are all

things that are all relevant.
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THE COURT: Okay, yeah. Here's what you say,
procedire, standards of care, blah, blah, blah. You said
anesthetic acents. Anesthesiologist supervision of Certified
Registered Nurse Anesthetists. Okay? He testified about
that. I'm assuming there's no more questions about that?

MR. STAUDAHER: Other than you didn't do it in this
facilizty and —-

THE COURT: Richt. And that's not as an expert,
that's as a percipient or a nonpercipient witness, if you
will. I — I didn't do it, I wasn't there. That's fine,
that's not expert. Okay, then the next thing is proper use
and documentation of anesthesia records. We already went
through this. He said this is how he'd fill it out and this
is what woulc have been there. So are we done with that?

MR. STAUDAHER: Well, in part. What that relates to
is how you -- how you bill for your time.

THE COURT: Here's the prcblem. He's already said, I
bill ore way and some other pecople bill another way. So
uniess is this i1s the standarc, then who cares how this guy
bills. You rneed to show that this is how people —— that how
the billing is suppcsed to be done or something -ike that,
ctherwise it's not relevant. So, you know, basically 1f you
can lay a better foundation. So far he's kind of saying,
well, this is whaet I do, I wouldn't bill at a —— basically

what I heard is ne doesn't bill at 15-minrute increments. He
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would bi1il I guess more real time, the 15 minutes plus
whatever, although he never said that. But scme pecvle do
bill at the 15-minute increments.

And then he said, well, he doesn't bill for that sort
cof preoperative time, you know, the getting tc know you phase,
but that other doctors may bill for that. So I mean —- you
know, I mean I guess 1f you want tc ask him all the different
ways people can bill, that's fine. The problem ‘s vcu haven't
established that he's going to be testifying abcout an industry
standard or practice or something like that because his unique
practices, they're only relevant tc the extent to show if they
were billing for his time, they didn't follow his »nilling
practices or something like that. If that's what vcu want»io
show ——

MR. STAUDAHER: That's —-— that's where I'm ccing.

THE COURT: -- then yocu need to make sure it is very
clear that he is not talking as an expert about industry wide
practices or practices in the, you know, Las Vegas community.
Ycu need to then say, okay, Doctor, vyou know, what —— what was
your specific practice? Blah, blah, blah, blah. Okay,
Doctor, if you had done work at the clinic would you have
followed that practice? Yes, and then tie it in that was
never cone so obviously he didn't do the work. Now that's not
him testifying as an expert. I'm fine with that.

But if you want him to testify clobally as tc how
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billinc s done, you have to have him establish, you have to
lay a better foundation and you have to have him established
A, that he has a basis of knowledge that this is basically how
everybody dces it or the prevailing view as how —— how it
shculd e dcre or that's the industry standard or what have
you. And then, vou know, he can testify to that. But right
now you really haven't laid a foundation for him to testify
glcbally. Acain, he can testify about what he does and had he
worked in this case he would have done that, that's all fine.
But the way 1t's coming in, it's sort of not clear that that's
where you're going with this. And as I said if you ——

MR. STAUDAHER: Fair enough.

THE COURT: -—- want to use this more clobally to say,
well, they didn't comply with industry practices, you've got
to set up that he knows what the industry practice is —

MR. STAUDCAHER: 1 uncerstand.

THE COURT: -- and he can testify about that.
Because richt now all I've heard from this doctor is him
saying this is wnat I do and other people do it differently.
wWwell, ckay, 1s it 50/850, is it 70/30 —— you know, anyway, you
need to iay & better foundation. If you're just going to use
it to show aca’n, you know, here's what he would have done, he
didn't work in tnis case, Dr. Desai lied about him being —-—
when I say this case, being involved with supervisicn and then

to tie it in to the records that clearly he wasn't involved in
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supervision because he cidn't bill that way, then you need zo
make 1t clear -- then that's fine. But then it has tc be
specific to him. 1Is that clear?

MR. STAUDAHER: Fair enough.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STAUDAHER: That's clear but there's two -—-
there's two points —-

MR. SANTACROCE: Can I put mine on the reccrd?

MR. STAUDAHER: -- just a second. There's two
points —

THE COURT: Well, let him finish.

MR. STAUDAHER: Part of what —- in relation to seeinc
these forms where he's listed as an anesthesiclogist
supervising person that he supposedly sicned them, I mean he
went out and he lcoked at some of these things. That's cne of
the parts that they ——

THE COURT: Anc that's all fine. Anything his name
is on or anything he's alleged to have done —-—

MR. STAUDAHER: Richt.

THE COURT: —- certain.y you can question him about
that and you're nct going into expert testimony when vou
question him about those things. Or what -- you know, again,

what he does, what he did, what he didn't do. That's all

H B
fine.

MR. STAUDAHER: But as far as anesthesie billing
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practice, him being an expert in any capacity, whether it's
local or not, I mean he knows what you're allcowed tc do and
what you're nct allowed to dc.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, you didn't ask it that way.
You're savinc —-—

M=. STAUDAHER: I know, I didn't get a chance to.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, you know, we're —— we're not
sure necessarily where you're going.

MR. STAUDAHER: Well part of it is that they're —-
they are under the misconception that he's just here as a
clean percipient witness. That's not what he's disclosed as.

THE COURT: OQkay. Well he can provide expert
testimony as you've disclosed. But in order for him to do
that you still have to lay a foundation that he's qualified to
-— to provide the testimony.

MR. STAULDAHER: Certainly.

THE COURT: Anc so far that hasn't been done because
bv his own answers, well, I do i1t this way but other pecple do
it thaz way. So, vou krow, that -- yvou're still —— what he
does. So ycu haven't -- yvou know, maybe we're getting there
and you got interrupted too soon or too frequently Cr
whatever. But so far you haven't laid a foundation that this
—— you know, or if there's three or four accepted ways and he
wants to testify about that, that's fine. But you still have

to, you know, lay the foundation.
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Are you familiar with the accepted billing practices,
Doctor? Yes, I am. Ancd are there several ways that you can
bill that's accepted in the industry? Yes, there are. And
what are those methods? Blah-blah-blah. And whet method do
you use, Doctor? Blah-blah-lblah. What about this method,
would that be accepted? No, it would not. Why not, Doctor?
That's fine.

MR. STAUDAHER: Okay.

THE COURT: But now you —— we know that he knows.
Mr. Santacrcce?

MR. SANTACROCE: As I indicated at the bench, I
wanted to make an objection to the relevance of Dr. Yee's
testimony and move to strike his entire testimony. Two
reasons. First of all, as a percipient witness, he —— they
haven't shown any relevance as to what he knows on July 25th
and Septemper Zlst of 2C07. Ee hadn't been in the —- he
hadn't workecd for the clinic apparently since 2001 cor
performed any procedures there. Secondly, as an expert
witness, they haven't qualified him as a bkilling expert of
CRNAs.

This case deals with CRNA billing, nct
anesthesiolccist supervising CRNAs. They haven't established
his cualifications that he's supervised CRNAs and what the
practice for billing for CRNAs was. And I don't think that

they're going to be able to establish that because by his own
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testimony, he's only worked with CRNAs four times in his
career. So those are my objections and I move to strike his
l testimony in its entirety.

THE COURT: Well, sc far his testimony, he really
hasn't provided -- 1 mean -- about —— you know, he talked
about the form and what he would have done and, you Know,
that's probably relevani to the charge that nc, he wasn't
supervising, nurmoer one. Nurber two, with respect to the fact
that he was nct there that day, the days in gquestion, I'm
assuming the point of this testimony is just it's part of the
practices of cverbillincg and misrepresentations and cutting
corners and thet sort of thinc. Is that the point of this
lltestimony?

MR. STAUDAHER: In part, Your Honor, yes. And
there's alsc direct communications that he had with Desai
I about these issues. So —-

THE COURT: OCkay.

MR. SANTACROCE: He doesn't ever kxnow the regulations
in Nevada that CRNAs car work unsupervised without an
anesthesiolocist and he's leacing the jury to believe that
they had to have an —

1]
THE COURT: Anc that's not true, I mean —-
MR. SANTACROCE: -— anesthesiologist supervision. I

| mean that's totally misleading and 1n each ——

THE COURT: Yeah, Mr. Staudaher, what about that?
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They're not —— I mean —- I mean here's the thing. If it —
misrepresentations were made and the point of that is it's
Jjust to show the way this clinic was being run and corners are
being cut, then he can certainly present that. If you don't
have evidence and that's not the law that it was required, you
can't suggest that it was reguired. It may still be relevant,
Mr. Santacroce. Again, it's relevant to the
misrepresentations and just the way the clinic was being run.
Is that kind of the point of this, Mr. Staudaher?

MR. STAUDAHER: Well, in —— in —— in part, Your
Honor, yes. But I don't —— I didn't get the issue that he's
raising, that Mr. Santacroce is raising that he made a
representation that you have tc have a —— you can't run
independently at all. 1If that's what ——

MR. SANTACROCE: That's —-- that's the inference ——

MR. STAUDAHER: -- it is I'll clear it up cr he can
clear it up on crcss.

THE COURT: Yeah, I think that may be the inference.
Because remember when I said at the bench, I said, that's not
true. And, in fact, at other very highly regarded
institutions, vou get a CRNA and there's no -- you know,
anesthesiolcgist hovering abcut. I can tell you this on
personal experience.

MR. SANTACROCE: BRut he can't testify to the

standards, as Ms. Stanish pointed cut. He's testifying about
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standards. He can't test:fy tc tncse standards that he
doesn't know and he's mislezding the jury.

THE COURT: Okay. NMr. Staudaher said he would clean
it up. I've already told Mr. Staudaher if he testifies about
standards he's going to have tc lay a better foundation to
show that he knows what he's ta_king about. That has not been
done yet. So Ms. Stanish, noc need to——

MS. STANISH: No, vcu've already ——

THE COURT: -- chime in here?

MS. STANISH: ©No, I'm not chiming in.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. STANISH: You've already told him how he should
set his foundation.

THE COURT: If aryone needs a two or three — vyou
know, five-minute break take it right now.

(Court recessed at 3:43 p.m. until 3:49 p.m.)

(In the preserce cof the jury.)

THE COURT: A1l ricght. Ccurt is now pback in session.
Mr. Staudaher, you may resume your direcT examinaticn.

MR. STAUDAHEK: Thank yocu, Your Honor.

BY MKk. STAUDAHER:

o Couple things. When we left off I was asking
you some questions about colcrnoscopy codes, things like that.
Do you remember coming before the grand jury at one point?

A Yes.
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o; Do you remember giving some testimony in which
that very subject came up?

A Yes.

Qe Ckay. If I approached you and gave ycu a copy
cf the transcript to refresh your memory, woulc that possibly
do s0?

A Yes.

MR. STAUDAHER: Okay. And I'm referring tc page 41
for counsel. May I approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: You may.

I.BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C You can read as much before or after to get
context as you need. That page right there. When you're done
let me know if that refreshes your memory. Does that refresh
your memory?

A Yes.

o What is the anesthesia code for a colcnoscopy?

A As I remember, it was 00810C.

o So 810 if we tcok off the front zeros?

A Yes. But these codes are subjected tc — to
change by the different additions ¢f the ASA textbocks,
codebooks.

Q But back then that's what it was; 1s that right?

A As I can remember, yes.

¢ Okay. Anc what about for an upper endosccpy?
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A 00740.

C So 740 for upper endoscopy, 810 for &

colonoscopy.
A Yes.
O Now cbviously, you must have learned somewhere

about how tc bill anesthesia time; 1s that fair?
Yes.
Where did you learn that information?

Just in my own medical practice.

o P 0 P

So as far as your medical practice 1s concerned,
I mean is there a booklet or some sort of documentaticn that

| you use to figure this stuff out?

A Yes.

C And what 1is that?

A It's a ASA Anesthesia Unit Codebock.

C So you're familiar with that?

A Yes.

C Do you use that cn a daily basis in vcur
practice?

A Yes.

@ When vou say ASA, wnat does that stand for?

A It stands for American Soclety cf

Anesthesioloccists.
Q Okay. Ancd this is standarc¢ —-- standerd

publication that's used across the country by
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anesthesiologists?
A T weuld think so, yes.
Qe Have you ever —— have you used it wherever you

practiced before?

A I've only practiced in Las Vegas.

C So it's used here?

A Yes.

C Do you know other anesthesiologists in town that

use the same codebook?

A Yes.

C Do cther anesthesiolcgists in town use some
cther cifferent codebook?

A T haven't seen any other codebocks.

o So that's your experience is that codebook is

used byv the anesthesiologists here locally?

A Yes.

C Now in that, does it have codes like we just
talked about, 710 —— or is 810, 7 —— 760 I think?

A Yes.

C And dces that not only denote the type of
procedere oput the base units for the anesthesia that vou can
charge for it?

A Yes.

o So you've got that information. And is that —-

have you seen anybody depart from that, make up their own
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codes to change it around at all as to what they would bill
for the -- as far as the base units for example?

MR. SANTACROCE: Cbjection, foundaticn.

THE COURT: Overruled.

MR. STAUDAHER: I'm asking his ——

THE COURT: Over —— 1 overruled.

MR. STAUDAHER: Okay, sorry.

A I have not seen that.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C And do you know many anesthesiologists in the
community?

A Yes.

C A lot of them?

A Yes.

C Have you worked with some of them at times?

A Yes.

C In fact, have you been in diffefent groups over

the time you've peen here?
A Yes.
C So you've workec independertly and you've workec

in group settings?

A Yes.
C Do you have a —— & —— as far as the billing
goes, do you bill your own —— own stuff or do you give it to a

pillinc company tc do?
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We've done both.

o]

C So you've done both cver the time?
A Yes.
C Have you used cnly one billing company or —— oOr

mere than one?

Pay More than one.

C Do they do it the same way? I mean ycu
cbvicusly xnow what you bring them and what they bill and what
you get back, correct?

A Yes.

C Is it the same way universally between all the
billinc companies?

A Yes.

C And in -- and do some actually take a higher
percentace Cr lower percentage depending on which kind of
company >t is for their fee?

A Yes.

“ C Ts that the only thing that really varies
betweer biil to kbill to bill?

A Yes.

C Now as far as your involvement in those cases
where you have done, you kKnow, colcncscopies or upper
endoscopies, the base urnits are five, think 1s what it said
here irn your -- in vyour testimony, correct?

A It might have changed over the last 10 years.
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C And I'm just talking about back then when you

] gave your testimony and about the time when all this was going

on.
A To the best of my recollection, yes.
C Okay. Now you also said that vou know that
there are —- that time is how anesthesia is billed above the

base base; 1s that fair?
" A The time would be in 15-minute increments, ves.

o So now you said that 1f for example —-

MR. WRIGHT: Objection to the leading.

THE COURT: Well, overruled.

BY MK. STAUDAHER:

C You said that a —— if a procedure lasted say 16
I'Hdnutes, that that woulc be technically two anesthesia units,
correct?

I

A Yes.

C And you sald 1t's your personal experience that
you would nct bill for the extra unit; is that fair?

A Yes.

C Do you know anesthesiologists in town that woulc
" bill for the extra unit?

A Yes.

o So 1s the time important on anesthesia records

to get reimbursed?

A Yes.
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C Is that universally known among all
anesthesiolocists that work in town to your knowledge?

A Yes.

C As far as your particular involvement in a case,
whether you wculd versorna_ly ¢c it or not, i1f you had been a
supervisor for somebody, such as a CRNA, would you have ever

encouraged, allowed or ccndconed the billing in the way that

I've —— I just told you?
A So alter the time?
C Not alter —— I didn't get to alter time.
THE COURT: That I —— I —— I don't know if he

understood the question but I didn't understand the question.
MR. STAUDAHER: Okay, bad question.
THE COURT: So can you rephrase the question?

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o Let's talk about just the 16 minutes for two
units versus one. Your perscna: deal is that vyou wéuld Jjust
do one unit, correct?

A Yes.

C Ts that because it's close enough to the 15 that
1t —— you den't feel it's apprepriate to bill for ancther
unit?

MR. WRIGHT: Objection to the leading, Your Honor.

THE COURT: That's sustained. Why —-—

MR. STAUDAHER: He's actually an expert, Your Honor.

KARR REPCRTING, INC.
230

001467




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

I

P

THE COURT: Well, I mean you can ask him why 1s that.

THE WITNESS: I —- I don't do it because number one,
I don't think it's right. Second, I think that would probably
call upon reviews by Medicare, by cother insurance companies to
lock in on the matter.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o Ckay.

THE COURT: But you said that you're aware of other
doctors who don't feel that way apparently and do 1t
differently.

THE WITNESS: Yes, some other people do that.

THE COURT: OQkay. Go on, Mr. Staudaher.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o If you had ever supervised or would ever
supervise anybody, would vou allow them to bill in that
manner’?

MR. SANTACROCE: I'm going to object, imprcper
hypotheticel.

THE COURT: Well, overruled.

THE WITNESS: I woulc not.

BY MK. STAUDAHER:

o Now, I'm coing to move to the other thing you

mentioned, which was actually altering the times. Have you

ever in your practice ever altered the aresthesia time beyond

Iwhat it should be?
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A No.
C And what I mean by that is padding time, adding

time that you did not actually legitimately could pill for.

A No.
C If you hac ever supervised anyboccCy, wculd you
have acreed or condcned that -- or sort of procedure with

somebody else?
A No.
C Why not?
MR. WRIGHT: Can we approach the bench, Your Honor?
THE COURT: Ckay.
(Cff-record bench conference.)
THE COURT: Next question.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:
C Next series of questions relate to your

interaction directly with Dr. Desai. Okay?

A Okay.
C Now vcu had saic thet at some pcint in the past
that you had entered into some —- or at least ta:ked about

some sort of superviscry role for e certified rnurse

anesthetist in his clinic; is that correct?

A Yes, there was ciscassion.
C Okay. And tell me what -- what 1t was apout
that discussion —— I mean how did that transpire, how far did

it get, that kind of thing.
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A The discussion started wher I believe we
realized that as fast as I cculd work there was only a certain
number of patients that I could do anesthesia for within the
-~ the day that I would -- when I go over to his endoscopy
center. My speed is limited. But 1if we had more CRNA
available and more rocms to do it 1in, then I can supervise
multiple CRNAs simultaneously and then to allcw more cases tO
be done. And so that's how the discussion started and I
believe it led to —

MR. WRIGHT: Objection. Can we just here what was
said by each? 1'd like to hear the discussion.

MR. STAUDAHER: By each?

THE COURT: Well, okay. Don't speculate but I think
—— when vou say I believe, dc you mean this is what you —-—
your recollection 1is?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Don't speculate as To what anybody else
may have been thinking. I den't know that that's what you
were doing or think that's what you were doing —-

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: -- but that may have been the basis of
the objection. So you can continue with or follow up with the
next questiorn.

THE WITNESS: So Dr. Desai expressed interest in

hiring CRNAs. And I pointed out tc him that the CRNAs had to
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be supervised by M.D. anestnesiologist or site for the
supervision to work.

MR. SANTACROCE: 1I'm going to object, Your Honor,
misstates the law.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. STAUDAHER: That's not the point at this point.

THE COURT: All right. Well, that's sustained to the
extent the witness cannot opire or state the law. It is
cverruled to the extent that the -Jury may consider that Jjust
as part of the conversation that was going on between the
witness and Dr. Desai. So you may proceed —— you may proceed
with your answer, Docctor.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q So at least you told — =zicht or wrong, whether

that's the state of the law cor not, that's what vyvoua told him,

correct?
A Yes.
C Now did — what were vou basing that cff of?
A Rased on my perscnal medical practice
experience.
Qe Okay. So you tcld him that that's -- and he's

asking you to be the supervisor, correct?
A Yes.
o] And vou told him that's the way it would have to

be, that somebody would have tc be directly supervising the
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CRNAs?

A Yes.

¢ In fact, did you —- did you tell him more than
that about who would be responsible if that wasn't the case?

A I tcld him that whichever M.D. doctor was 1in the
room when the CRNA was performing his duty, if something was
to go wrong due tc anesthesia complication, the M.D.
performing the procedure woulcd be held responsible for the
action of the CRNA.

MR. STAUDAHER: Can I have the coc camera, please?

MR. WRIGHT: Once again, I cbject to that, that

THE COURT: Well ——

MR. WRIGHT: -- simply his cpinion.

THE COURT: —- overruled.

MR. WRIGHT: Okay.

THE COURT: The Court has instructed the Jury as to
how the testimony may be considered.
RY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Can you go aheac and tep that in the corner?
I'm showing you what has been -- this is State's Exhibit 65
and this is Bates number 468 of that. We're going to zoom in
cn it a little bit because I know it's very small. But can
you tell us if you recognize thet documert?

A Yes.
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C What 1s 1t?

A It seems to be a letter of intent for me to
provide supervision —— supervisory service to CRNAs at Dr.
Desai's endcscopy center.

C Do you see any writing on this document —-- and I
can bring -- I brought it up to you a litt e bit earlier and

I'11l bring it up to you again if ycu neec o, out dc you see

any writing on this document that is, in fact, your —— your
writing?

A Yes.

o Can you circle for us in generel the areas that
have your writing on this document? Ckay. Go ahead and clear

that if you would.

MR. WRIGHT: I want tc make a recorc of that.

MR. STAUDAHER: He circled the handwritten portion on
paragraph three and the handwritten portion on paragraph five,
for the record.

THE COURT: That's the record.

BY MKk. STAUDAHER:

C Does your signature appear on this document at
all?

A Yes.

C Now I want to zoom in on that fcr & moment and

then we're going to zoom in cn some other porticns of this.

Does that appear to be your actual signature?
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A Yes.

¢ Now the date here appears to be the sixth of —-
or excuse me, July 31lst of 2006.

A Yes.

o There's a signature for what appears -- at least
the name underneath it is Dipak Desai and alsc a date, which
if you look at it closely, it looks to be the same, the sixth
—— or rather the sixth of -- it loocks like of July cf 2006.
Do ycu see that?

A Yes.

O Now the handwritten portions, let's —- let's go
through this, if you would. Let's see if I can just zoom it
cut just a little bit so you get the —- can you read that to
us, please, out loud?

A The one with the offsite?

C No. Just go ahead and reac the whole thing to
us out so that the jury can hear it.

A "This agreement dated May lst, 2006 oy and
betweer Gastroenterclogy Center of Nevada, a Nevade Jjoint
venture or its successor or assigns, and Thomas C. Yee, M.D.,
d/b/a Professional Anesthesia Consultants. Thomes C. Yee,
M.D. in conjunction with Dipak Desai, M.D. of Gastrcenterclogy
Center of Nevada, agrees to supervise anc consult with CRNAs
employed at Gastrcoenterology Center cof Nevada. Supervision

and consultation services will be provided regarding the
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anesthesiology service provided by said Gastrcenterclogy
Center of Nevada employees. It is agreed that Thomes C. Yee,
M.D. will be available for phone consultation in additicn to
on-call premise consultations as necessary.

The CRNAs who wiil be under the off-site supervision
of Thomas C. Yee, M.D. are as follcws: Barbera Glass-Seran,
CRNA; Linda Eubbard, CRNA; Rcnald Lakemar, CRNA; Ann Mar:ie
Lobionda, CRNA; Ralph McDowell, CRNA; Keith Mathehs, CRNA,
Vincent Mione, CRNA. It is further understood that this
agreement will include any and all CRNAs who may be emoloyed
in the future with Gastroenterology Center of Nevada.

This Supervisory Agreement shall include ell ASA
cases performed at the —- in the Endoscopy Center of Southern
Nevada, LLC, located at 700 Shadow Lane, Suite Number 165E,
Las Vecas, Nevada 89106 and the Dessert Shadow Endoscopy
Center, LLC, located at 4275 South Burnham Averue, Suite
Number 101, Las Vegas, Nevada 8%119. It is agreed that cases
that are class:fied as ASA —— greeter than ASA 3 will be
performec py Thomas C. Yee, M.D. and not by the CRNAs. Uniess
the M.D. Anesthesiclogist is on-site, all supervision is
limited to chart review for quality assurance purpose oniy.

Accepted —-- accepted by Dipak Desai, M.D. Managing
Partner of Gastroenterology Center of Nevada, 700 Shadow Lane,
Suite 165-A, Las Vegas, Nevada 89106. And signed Thomas Yee,

Professional Anesthesia Consultants, 3540 West Sahara Avenue,
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Suite 434, lLas Vegas, Nevada, 8%102."

C Now the portion that you read here on paragraph
three where it has the words off-site, it appears as though
there's something else written up here. What is —— what is
that?

A Oh, that's my initial.

C Okay. Anc the same thing on the handwritten
porticn down below here. If we go off to the side there's
also what eppears to be some initials there?

A Yes.

C So this was the agreement that you were proposed
—— OY proposing to enter intc with Dr. Desai?

A I wcould call this a letter of intent.

C Okay. And it indicates there that —- again,
what 1is your understanding based on the notes that you put in
here as to what yvour supervision wculd encompass if you were
not on-site’?

A If T was not on-site I was to only do chart
reviews for quality assurance purpCses.

¢ That's it”

A That's it.

C Did vou ever supervise anybody on —-- at the
Shadow Lane campus?

A No, never.

C Did he ever pay you a dime to do any supervision
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work?

A No.

C Did you bill fcor any anesthesia services that
were provided by any of those anesthesiologist — or excuse

me, nurse, certified nurse anesthetists listed there?
A No, never.
C Did you ever receive a penny of compensation for

any of this?

A No, never.

C Did you ever hear from him again about this
after you —— after you signed this document?

A No.

C Now I want to show you a different one and this
cne is Bates number 6 —— or 4€9. Do you see this one? It's a
little bit cf a different one, but I want to refer to — it's

ancther Supervising Physician Agreement. Do you see that?

A Yes.

C Now, if we go down to the bottom though, there
are three sicnature blocks this time. Do vou see that?

A Yes.

C One says Dipak Desai, one says Vishvinder Sharma
and then one says Thomas Yee.

A Yes.

o Now the dates cver here are in 2002. It looks

like all the same date, April 1st of 2002Z.
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A Yes.

Q Do you ever recall signing such a document?

A I doen't recall.

@ Lock at that sicnature there. Does that appear

to be your signature there?

A Thet's, to my recollection, that's not how I
sign my signatures.

Q As a matter of fact, if we go to the previous

one where ycu said 1t was your signature, vou see 1t there?

And this is on, acain, € -— or 468 —
A Yes.
C ~— and then we look at 469, that same —— same

signature. Do thney appear different to you?

A They're different and the —— the dates are
different.

C Yes. The dates are clearly different, they're
four years apart.

A Ne, nc, nc, the writing on the dates. 1 didn't

write “hat date. That cate, the handwriting on the date here

next to my name 1s identical to the handwritinc of the dates

“ next to Dr. Desai's signature.

MR. SANTACROCE: 1I'm going to object tc that, Your

Honor. There's been no qualification that he's & writing

expert.

THE COURT: All right. That —- that's sustained.

KARR REPORTING, INC.
241

001478




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

N
ot

N
N

MR. STAUDAHER: Fair enough.

THE COURT: He can certainly say it's not his
writing ——

MR. SANTACROCE: Right.

THE COURT: -—- or he doesn't recognize it.

THE WITNESS: You can compare the date writing ——

THE COURT: Well, sir, you're going ——

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

0 No, we don't want you to do that.

THE COURT: -- beyond your expertise as a physician,
SO.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

Q Suffice it to say that this 1s not your
handwriting for the date; is that right?

A No, no. You can compare that to my other
handwriting for the date on the other piece of paper;

C Okay. And we'll -- well, just go chead and do
that while we've got it up nere. There it is, right there.
Now, this seccnd Physician Agreement, which 1s four years
earlier, was there anything that -- I mean, do you remember
talking with Dr. Desai about maybe entering intc an agreement
before 2006 with him like you had talked -- or like yocu had
done in the previocus one that you actually signed?

A We talked about 1it, yes.

Q Okay. But you cidn't actually do anything?
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A No.

C Again, related tc this current one that we're
showing, which is 469, any payment for services rendered
during that time?

A No.

e Did you ever supervise any CRNAs during that
period of time?

A Never.

Q Did you ever »nill for or receive any payments
for any billing of any CRNAs curing that time?

A Never.

Q The issues with regerd to Dr. Desai and the
conversations you had about this, how mary different ones were
there to the best of your kncwledge?

A One or two.

o Would you have —- I mean is there —- 1is it

possible that there were more than that?

A It's possik.e.
C Did he ever after the last one, 1s that when it
culminated in the —- the -- wel., let me pull it up here, the

Supervising Physician Acreement listed here, which 1is 468
where vou actually signed it? The -- was it prior to that or
after that last conversat:on?

A I have never —— 1've never been pback to the

endoscopy center even after 2000, 2001.
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C Now, one —— just & ccuple last guestions. With
regard to the supervising that you were agreeing to do here,
and I'm talking about whether it be chart review, if you were
ocn—-site it would have been scmething that you would have
agreed to supervise actual procedures.

A Yes.

C Okay. And when it sayvs here ASA greater than
three, what does that mean?

A That means patients with disease conditions to
make them at higher risk for undergoing anesthesia.

o Does that mean that patients that fell
underneath that sort of bar, that you would have allowed

cif-site supervision?

A No.

Q Would you have ever been in a situaticn where
you would agree —— I mean, I know you've -- ycu've initialed
this heré ancd put that —- that addéndum in there, but would ——

did you or would you ever have agreed to do coff-site
supervision of somecne doing anesthesia on & patient?
A No.
Why not?
To my understancing that's not legel.

C
A
C That's what you believe?
A Yes.

Q

Okay. Regardless cof what -- whether the ——
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there's legality or whether it's legal or not legal, it's Zust
something that you woulcd not have done yourself?

A No.

¢ Did you ever enter intc any agreement with an
indivicdual by the name of Satish Sharma ¢ do any supervisory

work at the clinic?

A No.

C Do you know him?

A No.

C So he's not even somebody you've worked with?

A No.

o Did you have any discussions with anycne else
about supervising anesthesia —-- CRNAs at any other location?

A No.

C So this 1s the only time you've ever dealt with

ithis issue and is that the extent cf it?

A Yes.

MR. STAUDAHER: Pass.

THE COURT: All ricght. Who's first for crcss, Mr.
Wright?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes,

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MK. WRIGHT:

o; Did you ever —- did you ever have any

7 discussions with Tonya Rushing?
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A I den't recall.

C Okay. Do you know who Tonya Rushing is?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Dicd vyou talk to her at the same time you

were talking to Dr. Desail abcut whether or not to implement a
supervision agreement where an enesthesiologist would
supervise CRNAs?

A I only talked to Dr. Desal about this.

o Okay. So you didn't talk to Tonya Rushing about

it?

A I don't recall.

Q Does that mean you didn't or you don't — I ——
when you say it —-- does I don't recall mean yocu could have and

you're not denyving it or I did not?

A Tonya is a manager of the clinic.
C Yes.
A I wculd not talk to a manacer about these

matters, I would talk to the principal, the dcctor —-

o But you wouldn't talk to a manager?

A The manager has no right to make decisions
anyway, so it's a waste of my time.

o; Okay. Now you ta'ked to Dr. Desai back -- first
cf all, you — you were — I don't want to say you were
working for Dr. Desal, you were available as an

anesthesiolcgist before he went to the CRNA practice, he would
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call you and you would come and work, correct?

A I was never an employee --—

C That's what I said.

A —— right. And I was one of a large pcol of
anesthesiologists that he would call to provide service at nhis
endoscopy center.

o Okay.

A The frequency at which I appeared &t his
endoscopy center, in my recollecticn, was about once every
five to six months.

C Okay. Well, 40 or 50 times?

A No, I have never been 40, 50 times, nc.

L@

You've never been there 40, 50 times?

A No, no, no.

C Okay. Did vyou tell the police when they
interviewed you that you had done 40 to 50 procedures for Dr.
Desai?

A Do you know how many procecdures are dcne at one
time, in one sitting?

o Just a moment, sir. My cuestion wes, did you

tell the police when they interviewed you —-—

A Yes, one —— one day's work involved 20 cases.
C -— just a moment. Let me talk then vcu talk.
It's simpler for the court recorder. Did you -—- do you

remember being interviewed by the Metropolitan Police
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Department?
A Yes.

C Did vou tell them that you had done 40 to 50

cases?
A Yes.
C Okay .
A S07

THE COURT: Let me ask you this. Each time you

showed up &t the clinic this every five to six months, how

many cases would you do?

THE WITNESS: About 20 cases each time.
THE COURT: And by case we mean patient?
THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

C Okay. So you did more than 40 to 50, ycu would

I do 20 every six mcenths?

A No.
o Okay. Well, ycu're losing me.
A The frecuencies would be once every six months,

it but I ¢ic nct go that many times altogether.

o; Okay. So you estimate 40 to 50 procedures?

T

Yes.
C Okay. Anc that was pre-CRNA days, right?

Yes.

T
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Q And at the time Dr. Desai talked to ycu about

| going to a CR —— CRNA type practice, correct?

A Yes.
o Okay. Ancd he told ycu the reason, correct?
A Yes.

¢ Ckay. And he told ycu that it was toc difficult
looking, the anesthesiologist like yourself, for an expanding
practice and he was considering going to CRNAs and considering
going —- expanding to like an additional procedure room; is
that correct?

A Yes.
it Q Okay. And so then in discussing it with you,
you and he propcsed a type of arrangement, which we'll call a
letter of intent. Okay?

A Yes.
M o) Ckay. Anc it was —— was the contemplated
arrangement, something being ccnsidered as a possible
I intention be that vou would supervise the CRNAs as an
anesthesiolcgist?

A On-site, ves.
il o Yes, on —— right. Ycu being there and doing it?

A Yes.

Q Right. And that's what you had in mind and
proposed to him.

A I did not propcse to him —
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C Ckay.

A — this came up in discussion.

e Okay. Well it —-- by proposed, what I'm meaning
is, if it had —— if it hacd occurred under those terms, you

were interested in it.

A Yes. If I were to e called to co there in
person working in a superviscry role with one or two CRNAs,
that was something T woula pe interested in.

o) Okay. That -- thet did not come to pass,
correct?

A Correct, never happened.

C Ckay. Richt. You didn't -- you —— you know
that he —— they hired their cwn CRNAs, correct?

A Yes, he hired his own CRNAS.

C Okay. Anc vou knew he didn't gc forward with
your — with the proposed on-site supervision plan, correct?

A Yes.

C Okay. Anc vou were —— you initially spoke To

Dr. Desa: about that prckek.y in 2000 -— well, 1f you haven't
been there since 2001, i1t wculd have been around 2001.

A Yes.

C Whenever 1t wes that the practice went to — Dr.
Desai's clinic practice went tc CRNAs, it would have been
right before then. 1Is that a feir characterization?

A I had never keen to the encoscopy center in
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A Yes. Actualily, that's how we started in our
laboratory criginally in S0s NSSB, the region, which we now we
use only to detect genotypes and subtypes was used for
transmission studies. People still publish papers using NS5B
region or NS2 region to detect transmissions.

C Sc — and I guess vou kind of mertioned that
earlier, that different laks wi_ 1l lock at cifferent parts of
the KNA to do this kind of analysis?

A The most popuiar region is hypervariable region
one because everybody appreciated significance of this region
for this kind of analysis. Eut there are croups that may use
different recions, that's true.

Q I want to jump rcow tc the percentages that you
have there to make sure I understand what that means. On your
-— on this chart -- well, on vcur diagram, I should say, you
used the meximum nucleo seguerce identity, the maximum, which

would come from this coluwm, right?

A No. It's —- it should come from maximuam.
O OCh, I'm sorry. Yeah, what am I thinking. Yeah.
So this comes from —-- from this column. You just put the ——

totalec them all up and came tp with the range on ycur chart;
1s that correct?

A That's correct.

o And the statistics, not that T want tc get into

a big cdiscussion about statistics, but you —— is there some
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cut-cff where there's a -- where the statistics create some
kind of coubt or cther possibilities if it's less than a
certalr. percentage, like S5 percent. If it's less than 95
percent then it's not in vour mind as definite as, you know,
some ¢f these 200 vercert tnhings that we were looking at. Anc
I kncw I'm not using -— 1it's not & scientific question, so I'm

asking vou to help me out —--

A Yezh, that's why I'm a little uncomfortable —

c -— ¢on that. Do you know what I mean?

A —— because the model by itself actually tells a
étory. Rut if we are to talk about percentages, yes, we did a .

statistical analysis and we analyzed quasispecies pcpulation,

on

amcliec exactly using the same methodolocy because if a
different matter would be used, they may come to the different
biases. You know after this analysis, we learned that if
genetics —— maximum genetic identity less than three percent
in reality Zor subtype 1-A, I believe 3.2 percent fcr subtype
1-B, it wculc be —— I'm fuzzy a little, I need to lock it up,
but let's say four percent. And if it is belcw, let's say,
this velve, I'm very comfortable to say that those patients
represent the same strain.

) Just to make sure I'm clear on this, is it that
-— because you mentionec that four percent earlier and so
that's where I was trying to get scme clarification. Are you

—— and maype I'm just being too simple minded here, but with
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the percentages, i1f —— 1f instead it saic —— when ycu say four
percent, are you saying 90 —- if it were below 96 percent it
would be prcblematic?

A Oh, vyeah. Then I would rely only on
rhylogenetic analysis to see what phvlogenetic analysis tells
me.

o And I —— and, you kncw, this was part of my
question and I hope you can give us a —- a durb down answer so
that we can understand it. The, vcu know, you were using the
maximum figures on the chart and then here we have the means.

Is that just the average?

A Yes.

) And, you know, I see scme of these figures are
well below the 96 percent. You kncw what I mean?

A Oh.

o So could you explain that?

A Then you need to look into structure of the
porulation. This is very important because when I talk about
raximum identity, I'm looking at the entire pcpuiation and I'm
locking at each and every variant irrespective of its
frequency because the same variant, exactly the same variant
may be very fregquent. Let's say I comprise 70 percent of the
population. This significantly may chance conclusicn for the
means. But at the same time, we're locking at minimal

distances or meximal identity.
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And if we have, let's say, 1 already tried to explalr
this, 1f we have something like 10 variants sampled from one
patient and 10 variants sampled from another patient, then I'm
making a:l possible compariscns between being obtained from
cne patient tc ancther one. And in this case I should have ——
what are this — 100 minus 10, 1ike 45 compariscns. So
lockinc at all these 45 comparisons, between 1C azgeinst 10 and
then I choose the minimal, the minimal distance and that what
is an maximum identity here.

C A1l right. I don't understand, but that's all
right. The next area I want to go to is the —— I'1l -- I'm
going to really keep this simple because I'm just lcoking at
dots. Okay? And if you could join me here. And I know this
is all one—dimensional. I imagine in real life you've c¢ot
these molecules that are three dimensional ——

A No.

C No, it is? 1It's just flat? You learn somethinc
new every trial. And just in my simple history ma-cr mind, I
see on the right branch of the host patient, NVC45 is where
I'm looking, Mr. Rubino. As I understand it, he —— 1t's
because he had hepatitis C for & lcng time, he had this ——
more dots than the —- the more colcrful dots, correct?

A Well, no, because population is very
heteroceneous, basically one dominant branch here and then

minor branch here.
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o So I'm just goirg to keep this simple. Why

aren't there any dots here?

A To some extent —-—
o I'm scrry. And for the record I was pointing on
-— at the richt branch. It locks tc have maybe ten times more

dots then the left branch.

A I may only have brcucht the size wide, because
nobody would know and this is actual research. I wculd assume
that this pepulation, dominant pcpulation, wnhen we all have
this dots of any cther color, became dominant in this patient
because it adapted to this patient. In this patient they're
already antibodies that chasten trhis virus, kill some certain
members of the other subpoprulaticns and this become dominant
population in this patient by sheer chance. Bul there are
some remnants of previous subpcpulations that still can be
identified with these branches, with this small mincrity
branches. And thecse actually become more transmissible when
it come to naive host. We dic not experience this infection
before and whe has no antibodies vet before transmission.

Q Okay. Anc -- ard -- and moving over to your
July cluster. And why cdo we ca:l that a c.uster when there's
only one match? 1Is there —— is cluster some kind of
significant term?

A No. TIt's just -- just basically this also é

cluster, just a set of variants.
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o So we have a cluster of one or two, I guess.

A Yezh. It represent two patients and they —— but
there are many different quasispecies variant samples so
that's why it's very convenient for us to call them cluster.

C And then similar to this September cluster, the

s

}_‘I.
«Q

ht kranch, s it Mr. Ziyad, 2t has I cuess what you would

O
93]
[

1 a dominant branch with several quasispecies; 1is that

CCYrect”?

A That's correct.

o) And then there's —— there's a match on one, two
—— and I can't even count those, but on those —— those smaller
branch, voa have the -- the —— what matches from Mr.

Washincton; is that right?

A Yezh, that's richt.

o And -— and I want you to take a seat. As I
underszard what vyou're saying, is you're able to distinguish
the —— *the host patients, have it in their system lcnger and
it somehow develops in a more complex RNA strain? I know I'm
net using the right worc. Help me out.

A Just set of varilants.

¢ Good enouch. All right. Is there -- d¢ —- when
you do testing in the lab, dc you test organs that are, you
know, taken out of people whc have hepatitis or are you just
the blood cuy?

A ¢5.9 percent would test only serum specimens.
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Q Okay. So you're not looking at physical organs,
a liver?

A No.

Q All right. Can you tell from this analysis and
from this picture of dots that we're seeing, can you tell
whether any of the —— we'll call them the colcred dcts,
whether any of these individuals had hepatitis C separate and
avart from what you're concluding came from the host patients?
Do you see what I'm saying?

A Yeah. This analysis actually cannot determine
disease, so we cannot say 1f anv one of those patients has
hepatitis C. The only thing we may say that these peodple
infected with certain populaticn of the virus, we sampled this
population and then we genetically related.

THE COURT: Does that mean you con't cetermine like
symptoms or ——

THE WITNESS: ©No, we can't. Actually we cannot do
it.

BY MS. STANISH:
C And that's really not what 1 was going —— trying

to get at. What I was trying to understanc is you're

comparing Mr. Rubino's blood with let's say -- 1s 1t number 1,
C01, Mr. Meana's blood, so -—- correct?

A Yeah, hepatitis C variance from these two .

Q Right.
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A ~— specimens.

®; And —— and you've come to the ccncliuded --
conclusion that there's enough matches to make you feel to
some degree above 95 -— above 96 percent that there is a
match.

A That may be —

MR. STAUDAHER: ObJjection Ycur Eonor, that
mischaracterizes his prior testimony.

THE COURT: All right —-

MS. STANISH: Please don't —— I'm not trying to
mischaracterize the evidence, Your Honor. I'm just trying
to ——

THE COURT: I think that can —— right, happen
because, you know. So Doctor, if, you know, Ms. Stanish says
this was this —— you know, this was your prior testimony and
that wasn't your prior testimony then feel free to correct
her.

THE WITNESS: OQOkay. I didn't notice.

BY MS. STANISH:

C You can you correct me. Did 1 mischaracterize
your evicence? I'm sorry.

A This is a very complex assay. 1 just know it 1s
the —— the way we discussing this. It's not about
percentaces, it 1s about this tree actually that's shown here

because this tree shows —— show, though we use percentage and
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I already said how we use it, but I woulc never use only —-
cnly those numbers to estaklish [indiscernible] transmission.
I would immediately ask, I need to see phylogernetic tree
because that tree has a lot of nfcrmation for me as well.
That irdicates that these twc pecple share tne same strain.

o Okay. So that was & questicn I nad and help me
out with this if I misstate it. Okay? Your ability to
determine the direction of the nfection, as I understand 1T,
your —-— based on this picture, you're corc.uding that Mr.
Rubino, number 45, is the host patient because he had this

complex nucleotide and the other people were more recently

infected so their — they have & much smal_er nuclectide.
A That's the genera’l idea.
o Am I mischaracterizing the eviderce or saying it

pretty close?

A No, it's pretty c.ose.
o] Okay, pretty close. Now, what I'm trying to get
at —— what I was trying to get &t was whether 1f you have &

patient, Mr. Meana, for instarce, whc hac been previously
infected with hepatitis C from a different source, not Mr.
Rubino, from somecne else and maype he had a low viral load,
would this study distinguish that given the area of the RNA
strain that you evaluated?

A Seems that woulcd be a different strain. It

would be very well separated in this phylogenetic tree from
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the source. We wculd definitely see that they not linked.

C Well, I guess what I'm asking is you can be -—-
let's say I —— let's say for exemple, just an example, that
Mr. Rubirc was previously exposed, contracted hepatitis C when

he was, vou know, 1S years olc and he cleared it from his

svstem or 1t remeéined at a very low viral level in his system.

-

And, vou know, fast forward 3C, 40 vyears now arnd he gets

(
O

infected let's say with Mr. Rubino's blood. OQCkay? What I'm
asking vou is s that infection that he contracted -— 1 guess

I call it & reinfection —-

A Yes, it 1is.

C -- is that the proper term?

A Yes.

C Would his previous infection shcw up on your --—

your chart here in your analysis?

™

Only if titer would be sufficient of that virus
from the previous -- from the previous infection. And if I
would sample those variants 1 would clearly see that, but then
they would ke totally different from this variance, which was
samclec from the second infection.

C So if I'm understanding you —— I guess I didn't
underszand you. Could -- could you say that —-- could you
explain that to me —-

A Let's say —-

C —— like I'm a third grader?
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A I Just don't remember names.

o Oh, sure, so —-—

A Let's go over like a patient one --
C —— using numbers ——

A —— patient two or whatever 1t 1is.

THE COURT: Would vcu be able to discern that there
had been twc different infections?

THE WITNESS: Definitely I woulc :f T could sampcle
both populations from previous infection, from early infection
and later infecticn but —-

BY MS. STANISH:

C Okay. You could do it but you didn't have that
samecle, right?

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection, mischaracterizes his
testimony.

A No, let's assume ——

THE COURT: .1 think given the complexity of the —-—
you know, I may remember it incorrectly or I may not have
understood it —-—

MR. STAUDAHER: Okay.

THE COURT: —-- so I think, Doctor, if Ms. Stanish
says something and that's incorrect, acgain, feel free to say,
you know, that's not correct or that's not what I said. And
ladies and gentlemen of the jury, cf course, cnce again you're

reminded, you know, it cdoesn't matter what the lawyers say the
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evidence is, it dcesn't matter what 1 say the evidence 1is,
lIit's your ccllective recollection as to what the evidence was
that always contrcls in your deliberation, not anything any of
|| us may say, meaning the lawyers and myself. So Ms. Stanish,
would you state that again?
BY MS. STANISH:

o; I1'11 trv. What I'm trying to uncerstand, Dr.

i
Yury, is, ycu know, tallying off of what Judge Adair said, I'm
il trving to understand if Mr. -- if sample 01, if that

individual had a previous infection —— if I'm understanding

your response to Judge Adair, would you have to have access to
| the otrer host patient when he was 19 years old, just an

example, in order tc do that test?

I A No, I didn't say that.
" ‘ o Okay. That's what I didn't understand.
A No.
I @ Then I'm not uncerstanding. I didn't get to

talk to vou before right now, today, right?
II A Yezh.

C Okay. The -- so if someone was infected when
they were 19 or 20, one of these individuals here, thet would
show up in the analysis in the E-1 and E-2 that you evaluated
in the RNA strains?

I A Okay. Now I believe I understand —-

" Q I'm sorry.
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A —— but it is very complex cuestion. It can and
it cannot, it depends. Because if the first infection was
completely cleared and titer is below detecticn, that the
definition of clearance. So if virus carnot be detected I
cannot sequence 1it, 1 cannot cetermine it.

o; Okay. That's -- that mekes sense to me.

A Yeah. But if patient didn't clear tnis virus,

let's say it was infected but didn't clear the virus and virus

D,

still circulating in this patient —-- and if it is circulate in

C

sufficient numbers so when I sample 100 or 200 variants, I
still can't sample variants from the previous infection, then
I definitely would see two different populations in this
patient.

¢ T see. All right. Fair ercugn. And speaking
—— just a little —— well, let me finish with this one
question. TIs there any possibility whatscever that Mr. Meana
was the host patient who —-- whc shares the guasi seguences
with your other cclored dots on your chart, any possibility
that happened in your mind?

A Me —— no —— what?

o) You know, I'm sorry, CO1.

A Oh, 01 cannot be & scurce.

Q Okay. And why do you say that?

A It doesn't have —-- it doesn't have significant

heterocenics to be a source, to evelve this virus lcng enough
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to —— so it is indistincuishable from other patients in this
cluster.

C And if he had some other —— well, I wen't go
down trat reinfecticn route acain. I want to talk to you
about a terw that veou Jjust used a moment aco, you talked about
the virus clearinc the system. Wnhat does that mean?

A 17 means -- 1t means that immune system of that
host was effective in removinc this virus from circulation
from this patient and now this virus is undetectable in the

infected person.

C And help me out with the term. Is —— is —— if
you —— if scmeone clears the virus, how is that typically
done? That's & —— I car tell by ycur look that's nct a good

scientific guesticn. Let me rephrase it. Pecple can take
medication to clear the virus from their system; 1s that
correct?

A Yezn, can be drug-induced clearance or it can be
spontaneous clegrance.

C AnG spontaneous clearance, does that just mean I
got a pretty cood immune system, it can fight off the virus?

A Yezh, it may mean this.

C And is it -- is it incorrect to use the term
cure? Let's say I take medicine and I clear it, does that
mean I'm cured?

A If it was drug-induced, then you're cured.
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Spentareous clearance, yeah, I guess so. It's the same thing.
It just basicaily saying that virus is undetectable in the
person.

C Is it lying in wait like in a remissicn like a
cancer patient wnc can have a resurgent?

A I'm not a physician.

THE COURT: 1Is that beyond vyour expertise?
BY MS. STANISH:

C Oh, you don't know?

A Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay.
BY MS. STANISH:

C Okay. I'm sorry. I didn't know. I just wanted
to understand that term, clearing. All right.

MS. STANISH: Court's indulgence. Scrry. 1 have

nothing further, thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Mr. Santacroce?
“ MR. SANTACROCE: Thank you.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. SANTACROCE:
C Doctor, when you received the samp.es from the

Southern Nevade Health District, they were numbered with these
numbers right here, correct?
A I believe they were numbered at CDC in our

|
reference laboratory.
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C

of infection,

A

C

And those are --

Thet's the way I receive them already with those

i} identifiers, rignt.

Those are CDC numbers.

Yes.

And vcu wouldn't have had the name or the date
just numbers.

Yes, only numoers.

I ncticed that there's a big difference between

number one and number 28. What happened to the other 28

nunbers?
A

C
number 29,

A

I weuldn't know. I have no knowledge.

Are you telling me ycu only analyzed number one,

nurber 30, 31, 41, and 427

Yes. I mean from this cluster, ves. We tested

some other specimens, but not on this tree. But they were PCR

negative in our hands, that's why they didn't find their way

into this chart.

C

Because you couldn't genetically metch them;

isn't that correct?

A

No. We couid not amplify DNA tc sequence even

to do matching.

9

Is that because they weren't infected or you

Jjust didn't have enough samples?

A

The acid which we use simply could not pick up
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this DNA or RNA 1n this case.

C And it's possible that those —— or 1is it, were
those -- were those samples from the Scuthern Nevada Health

District?

A I didn't cet the guestion.
@; Well, the ones that you —-- that —-- wnat ycu -ust
referred tc thet you couldn't metch or couldn't 1ink that you

tested or analyzed, were those samples from the Scuthern
Nevada Health District?

A I believe it is a misunderstanding. These
specimens, which were not reported on this tree n here, they
PCR necative. So in this case I could not méke match because

I could not amplify DNA to make this match.

G When you say necative, what coes that mean?

A It means I did not receive PCR product to
sequence.

C You didn't receive what?

A PCR product to dc sequencing.

C Were there any samples that you énalyzed that
you could nct —-— cther than the ones you just sad, that you
could rnot cenetically match to this —- these trees?

A No. Those which we did not amplify, we did not

Il match. It is just —— if you don't have fingerprints you have

nothinc to match.

o So it's possible that you had scme samples that
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didn't have fingerprints as you say?

A Ch, yeah. We have a few specimens when we could
not amplify DNA. That's why we couldn't go shead with our
assay, ves.

c And those few specimens were from the Southern
Nevada Hea trh District.

A Yes.

C And they were part of the cays —— well, you
wouldn't kncw thet, never minc.

F' A Yeah, I wou_dn't know.

it C And after vou reached your conclusions you sent
the samp.es back to the Southern Nevada Eealth District or did
ij you not’?

A T didn't ¢¢ it in person because the way it —
we operate, I send it to epidemiolegist in charge of this
“ outbreak investigation anc thet epidemiolocist reported back
to Nevada.

0 And the names ard the dates came later from
somebocy else.

i

A That's true.

®; Ts there anv way that you can identify from your
research studies analysis the mechanism of transmission?

A No.

C So you wouldn't know from looking &t these

i
F whether it was from a blood transfusion, unsafe sex practices
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cr anything, correct?

A No, I wouldn't.

c The only thing you can tell us is that Rubino
and Zivad, 45 and 46, were the source patients, correct?

A Yes. That's what phylcogenetic genetic analysis

C And you can tell us that certain of these
nurrbers or patilents were infected by those source patients; 1s
that correct?

A That's correct.

C Is there any degeneration in the samples because
cf time has lapsed?

A If that happened then we would have difficult
time to amplify tc get material to analyze.

9; Well, in your grand jury transcript ycu seid
that Zivad's sample didn't come to you for several months
after —he others; is that correct? And Ziyad is 46.

A Yes, this specimen arrived 1 believe in May.

C Would that have any effect on your analysis, the
fact that it came sc much later?

A Not with this short time span, but the cnly
effect it would have actually, if it could, then I wouldn't be
able tc detect linkage by transmission.

MR. SANTACROCE: I have nothing further. Thank you,

sir.
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THE COURT:

MR. STAUDAHER:

to make it quick.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Whet he was just
the sample —- let's say 1t got
cocked before it got to you Cr

China and it took 50 years tc get to you.

Thank ycu. Redirect.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

it was se:

Just a couple, Your Honor. I'll try

asking about, with regard to

on a siding Duluth and it was

on a siow boat to

As long as it's

frozen, it comes to you and it has detectable amount that you

can amplify, meaning the DNA -—- the RNA in this case, you

could co the study, right?

A That's true.

C Okay.

So we're talking about if the —— 1if

anything, you're not going to be able to actually detect any

RNA to do your —— vour COmparisons.

A That's true.

That's what 1 said.

C Now vou were asked e couple of guesticns about

your chart and abcut the —- the NHANES data that's cn there in

sort of the white circles.

You said that that was —— and Ms.

Stanish used a couple of times, she was talking about that

being a control group.

A Yes,

I

do.

Do you remember that?

o Could you have done that analysis without any of

those people in it?
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A Yes. We use this only for convenience, for
visual apprecieticn of differences. 1In reality, I could have
used onlv patients who are involved in those clusters in my
phylogenetic analysis.

C So they're not a control group, they're

demonstrative purposes so you can visualize the differenc

m
mn

is that fair”?

A On this analysis, yes.

C And you said that this chart itself ~ust shows
the cuasispecies diversity between the individuals; 1s that
fair?

A Would you repeat this again?

C The chart -- or your diagram shcws the
quasispecies di&ersity between the individuais.

A Yes.

C Okay. So we kept quasispecies within an
individual and then your chart saving, okay, what is this

population in comparison to this person over here.

A Yes.
o Are they related or are they not releated?
A Yes. We're comparing two populations sampled

from two patients.
o And you were asked about those chart —-- the
charts and remember you had the five percent on one and three

percent. Is it just like, as Ms. Stanish said, & —- a legend
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cf a map that it just sca_es it for you or either that or it's
just the distance on the map thet you're using?

A It is basically scale that allow us to lock at
this tree and epproximaze the distances between different

variants alcng the tree.

C Now last cuesticon. If I understand ycu
correctly, we're talkinc about et the very meximum here 1t
locks like the range from between 90.Z percent to 100 percent
or 98.€ percent petween the —- the —— at least genetic
relatedness between the July cluster patients and between 98.2
percent and 100 percent ir the September cliuster, correct?

A Correct.

C Sc 1.€ percent variation ir all of the September

cluster, correct?

A That's correct, meximumn.

¢ Maximum. And or the July cluster tt's 1.4
percent.

A Yes.

C So you said that —— if I —- if I'm correct, that
anything —- you felt comfortable saving that they were

identical, thev came from the same source, they were identical
viruses even though they're different cuasispecies if 1t was
above three percent, correct?

A Yes.

Qo S0 --
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A Thet's correct.

C — anything above 97 percent is essentially
identity; is that fair?

A That's fair.

MR. STAUDAHER: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Any recross’?

MR. WRIGHT: Can I ask a question?

M=. STAUDAHER: Sure.

MR. WRIGHT: I tried to explain it tc Mergaret.

MS. STANISH: You know, Jjust take it -- you want to
take arother 15 minutes and I'l11l ask 1t?

THE COURT: In the interest of hunger, go ahead.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MK. WRIGHT:

®; What —— what we defense lawyers are always
worriec apout when we don't understand the science, which I
don't, okay? We're worried that the science that you are
tellinc us right now is going to pe different or more refined
and better 10 vears from now and we're going to find out we

were wronag. Do you understancd what I'm saying?

A Okeay.
C Are —— are -— where are we Or yct 1in your
molecular biology studies and everything to -- as to this

being absolute certainty, your methods in what you're doing.

Is it absolutely certain?
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A It is absolutely certein in my mind.

C Okay. And you know, you're a sclentist, that
what's certain today could e absolutely false 30 years from
now, correct?

MR. STAUDAHER: Cbjection, speculaticn, vague and
ambiguous pecause 1t doesn't purport to —-—

THE COURT: Well --

MR. STAUDAHER: -- be the same issue with regard to
this test.

THE COURT: -- okay, sometimes that, not necessarily
with this science, but sometimes in science that happens,
something that's believed one day is discredited down the
road; is that fair?

THE WITNESS: It is a failr statement.

THE COURT: Okay. Tren gc focus in, Mr. Wright.

BY MR. WRIGHT:

C Okay. I mean I -- the —- have you read Stealing
Gods Thunder, & bcok?

A No, 1 didn't read —-

MR. STAUDAHER: Your Bonor, relevance.

THE COURT: All ricght. And he hasn't read 1t anyway
and it's not relevant.

BY MR. WRIGHT:
C Okay. Well, I'm going to —- the —- you know who

Thomas Jefferson is.
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A Yes, 1 do.

o Okay. Well he —— he invented the _ightening roc
in the 1750s. Okay? And at the time this was not only
blasphemous, but it was also contrary to all conventional
wisdom. n1d in the colonies they passed laws preventing the
use of the lightening rod believe —-—

MR. STAUDAHER: Your Honor, is this testimeny or ——

THE COURT: Yeah, it's getting a little testimcniel.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

C Okay. Do you —- did you know that in the
colonies they passed laws that prohibited the use of
lightering rods because the belief was the ligrtening rod was
pullinc the lightening in.

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection. Relevance, Your BHonor.
BY MR. WRIGHT:

o Did you know that?

A No, I didn't.

o Okay. Did you know that it was believed that
lightering was supposed to be God's vengeance and sC you
shculdr't interfere with divine retribution.

MR. STAUDAHER: Objection, relevance.

THE COURT: Sustailnec.

BY MR. WRIGHT:
o; Okay. Now —— nowadays we use lichtening rods,

right? Correct?
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A Yes, we do.

C Okay and 1 meen thev're safe and they aren't
stealing God's thunder, r-gnt?

A They don'z.

MR. STAUCAHER: Ck-ectlon.

THE COURT: Do vou use & iighterning rod as a

molecular —- I'm sorrv. [ mear, I think we're maybe —-—
BY MR. WRIGHT:

C Ckay. Time sake, okay.

THE COURT: 1 know wrere you're going but your --— but
focus —-
BY MR. WRIGHT:

C Let me cet -- well, I'm trying to give an
example ——

THE COURT: -- focus in on —-- or what this —
BY MR. WRIGHT:

C — to flush it cut. Dc you <now what phrenoclogy

is?

MR. STAUBAHER: Okcjection, relevance, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. That —— that's —

MR. STAUDAHER: Mr. Wright is not the cross-examining
attorney. I allowed us some leeway for a few guestions but
this is -~

THE COURT: That's sustained but may I see counsel at |

the bernch here?
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(Cff-record kench conference.)

THE COURT: I have some Jjuror guesticns up here.
Juror would like to know, how long can the hepatitis C virus
live when exposed tc air? Meaning, you know, it's cutside of
the nhuman bocdy and then be exposed to alr?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, most prcobably days and weeks.

THE COURT: Ckay. And cen the virus live in other
scluticns? Meening if it's, vou know, 1f it's in the blood
and it's transferred into ancther solution such as, you know,
saline solution or some kind of medicine that's in a liquid
form cor something like that.

THE WITNESS: Yes. Papers were published indicate
that virus can survive for almost 20, 30 days in water.

THE COURT: 1In water, okay. Have there been any
studies, if you know, about how long a virus can survive in
cther —ypes of liquid soluticns?

THE WITNESS: 1T wasn't following this really closely,
but 1 believe another study claimed that virus was surviving
in svrince also like more than one month.

THE COURT: In what kind of solution?

THE WITNESS: Syringe.

THE COURT: Okay. And then finally —-

MR. SANTACROCE: Your Honcr, I didn't hear that.
JWhat was the answer?

THE COURT: Can you stete the answer again?
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THE WITNESS: Oh, virus survivec -n a syringe.

MS. WECKERLY: Syrince.

THE WITNESS: Injection device.

THE COURT: Oh, & syringe.

MR. WRIGHT: I thought he was saying sewage.

THE COURT: You xnow, . neard the worc end then I
thought —— I didn't really understand what it was either, I'll
just confess right here. And I thcught, well, you know,
cbviously I just don't know what this word means or 1 just
haven't been following along. I den't want tc ask so —

THE WITNESS: So there's much confusion generating.

THE COURT: Thank vyou, Mr. Santacroce.

MS. STANISH: Yeah, we don't want you
mischaracterizing the evidence, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. And then a jurcr here asks,
let me just preface the juror's gquesticon. Is there new
technology available tocay that was not, you krnow, that was
not available at the time tne study cr the testing that you've
described here in your testimony wes performed?

THE WITNESS: It's not exactly it wasn't available,
it wasn't used. It was alreacy invented. Right now we use a
next generation sequence in sampling quasispecies from
indivicdual patients.

THE COURT: Anc¢ would the new technology available

today change the results of your analysis?

KARR REPORTING, INC.
171

001408




O

10
11

12

14
15
16

17

THE, WITNESS: I con't believe so because the only
difference between what we did befcre and right now, before we
manually sempled indivicual variants. That's why we could
Il sample 20, 30 sometimes 2C0 variants. New technology alicws
us to sample thousands of variants at once and make it
significantly cheaper and less labcr intensive.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Staudaher —-

I MR. STAUCAHER: One follow up.
THE COURT: -- any foliow up?
MR. STAUDAHER: Related to that question.
FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATICON
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

m

I C So if you can sample more, you already know how
related these are based on ycur study, correct?

A Yes.
i e If you can sit and make more samples and get
more irformation based on your analysis, what you dc now, what
you dic back then, do you think that the cluster wouid e more
tight or would it be essentially scmething where you, onh,

£

gosh, all of a sudden these things aren't related at alil”?

A No, relatedness cannct be broken. If we alreacy
found those variants that link those patients. If we sample
many more variants and that would show that there is no

linkage, this data cannot be changed.

C So it's either coing to get better or it's going
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to stay the same?

A It's goinc to be —— it's going to be the same,
linkage not going to be changed. Even it may improve I mean
in terms of percentages as we talked about —- about here.
Since we sampled variants we mav get less diversity between
strands of —— between variante dentifiec in different
patients.

MR. STAUDAHER: Nothing mcre, Your HCnor.

THE COURT: Ms. Stanish, anvthing else?

FURTHER RECRCSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. STANISH:
C Recl quick. Kird of tagging off somecne's

~

question there, general irnformation abcut the hepatitis C
J

virus. I understand from opering statement of Mr. Staudaher

that hepatitis C was discovered like in the late '80s; 1is that

correct?

A 1989.

o) 1989. And over time, cver the years, has the
virus's RNA, the stuff that you tested —— or not here, has the

RNA changed over time historica_.iy?

A That's a very difficult cuestion since we don't
have samples to lock at and urderstand and the whole protocol
is very difficult.

) Well, I'm sorry. All I was —— I'm sorry, all I

was getting at was this. You know your comparison sample,
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what 1 apparently mislabeled as control ¢roup, but that --
that natlonal survey that you used for purposes of comparison,
that -—- the blood samples came back —- were gathered as I
unders-ood it, frcm the 1980s and the early 'S0s. All I'm
asking is that different, you're ccmparing different viruses
from 20 veers egc tc —— to ncw. DC you see what I'm saying?
A There are certain changes in a viral populaticon
that exists. Let's say genotype structure can change, some
type structure that looks like that 1-D subtype was mcre
predorinant eariier and now 1-A dominates more. But
relationship, genetic relaticnship, between strains cannot
change.

C Okay. &o what ycu're saying is the information
in the E-1 and the E-2 envelopes that you've studied, that

remains the same even though you're —— compared to the strains

A Not all information. Informaticn that defines
relatecness between strains that are the device strength.

C Okay. I'11 leave it at that. Let's have lunch.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Santacroce?

MR. SANTACRCCE: None.

MR. WRIGHT: You cleared that up.

MS. STANISH: Yeah, I cleared that up.

THE COURT: Mr. Staucaher?

MR. STAUDAHER: Nothing further, Your Honor.
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THE COURT : Do -- does anyone on the jury have any
additional questicns for this witness? All richt, Doctor, I
think there are no further questions for you. Thank you, sir,
and you are excused.

All rignt, ladies and gentlemen, we're going tc go
ahead and take our lunch break. We'll be in recess for lunch
break until Z:30.

Cnce again, I must rem:nd -- remind you that you're
not to discuss the case or anything relating to the case with
each other or with anyone else. You're not tc read, watch,
listen to any reports of or commentaries on this case, any
person or subject matter relating to the case by any medium of
information. You are not to cc any independent research by
way of the Internet or any other medium. And please do not
form or express an opinion on the trial. If you'd please all
place your notepads in your chairs and foliow the bailiff and
we will see vou at 2:30.

(Jury recessed at 1:27 p.m.)
THE COURT: 2ll ricght, then, 2:30.
(Court recessed &t 1:28 p.m. until Z:33 p.m.)
(Outside the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: Okay. Well, let's talk to Mr. Ham's
clients first.

MR. HAM: Thank vou, Judge, I appreciate 1t. Art Ham

on behalf of Patty Aspinwall who's here with me.
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THE COURT: All right. And my understanding 1s that
,JMS. Aspinwall has signec a ccnfidentiality agreement as part
of a settlement in a civil lawsuit; is that correct?
i M=R. HAM: That's correct, Your EHonor. And similar to
what I understand the other plaintiffs’ attorneys have done,
I'm obviously wanting —- wanting tc just simply assert my
ﬂ cbijection tc my client testifying about any of the
confidential things that were contemplated by the pricr
settlement acreements including amounts. I uncerstand Your
l| Honor ras already made rulings in that regard so, of course,
we will abide by these rulings and respect them. Just
llpreserving my reccrd.
THE COURT: Okay. And obviously, Jjust Ms.
il
Aspinwall, any private agreement that you entered into, you
" know, if you're gcing to be a witness here, the defense has &
right To crecss-examine you. And so even if you've agreed not
i to disclose something, if I deem it to be a relevant question
||from the defense and 1 order you to answer, then you must
answer it in this proceeding. Do you uncerstand?

MS. ASPINWALL: Yes.
" THE COURT: Basically by way of private agreement you

can't limit a defendant accused right to conduct a thorcugh

cross—examination. It's kind of the gist of it. Basically
what the other plaintiffs have been orderec te answer are

questions as to the actual amounts they've received either as
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a result of settlements and from who they've received those
amounts. Anything relating to how much money your lawyers
made or other things are not at all relevant and, ycu know, if
you were named with other plaintiffs' amounts, other
plaintiffs have gotten in conrecticn with any of the matters,
are completely irrelevart. So it's cniy, vou know, what you
and your husband, if he was a separate plaintiff, wculd have
received. All right?

MR. HAM: Understood, Your Honor. Thank vou very
much for doing this.

THE COURT: All richt, thank you. Anc I don't know

when you'll be called, but yocu can Just

e}

¢ anead and 1 guess
wait out there in the vestibule, wherever vou had her.

All right. Anc Mr. Wright, wes there something else
we neeced tc do out of the presence cf the Jjury?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes. Regarding anestheslologist Yee on
page of the proposed exhibit introduced at grand jury. I
don't mind the blank anesthesiclcgy pages or the actual
agreements that he signed.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. WRIGHT: BRut the balance of the pages, he
testified in the grand jury and literally said I'm not a
lawyer but I think the law is —-- and then he produced those
documents to say what the federal law is on nct allowing

anesthesia -- CRNAs to perform without a supervising
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anesthes.olccist cver them or something to that effect and
then he sad Nevada's the sare.

M=. STAUDAHER: With respect to that, I can short
circuiT ‘t —— 7 think I can shoert circuit this to scme degree.

rose paces, because he testified to it, it's the basis of his
kncwiedce as to what separate —— or not separation but what
supervisicn he mey or may not have anticipated, contemplated,
would encacge in, what the limits of that were. To the extent
that he relied on something else, I wanted to make sure that
any document that he was relying on he had a Court -- at least
a Court's exhibit of.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STAUDAHER: Now, that's incorporated intc thaﬁ
pecause that's all of the documents that he testified to and
he may need tc refer to those. But I don't have an issue —-

THE COURT: Okay. So we can take off the back part
that Mr. Wricht objects to and have it available, make it a
Court's exnibit and have it available for the witness if he
needs —o refresh his recollection cor refer to something. And
as I urderstand it, the point of this testimony is for the
doctor to say I did A, B, and C because I believe it was
required by the code of Federal Regulations or I didn't do A,
B, and C because I don't believe it was required.

MR. STAUDAHER: Essentially, yes, not ——

THE COURT: Okay.
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MR. STAUDAHER: -- the substance of any statutes on
federal or ctherwise.

THE COURT: Okay. And then whether cr not 1t was
required or not required Is cbviously an issue of law and 1if
that becomes relevant we can instruct the jury according to
what I think the law is; is that fair?

MR. STAUDAHER: Thet's fair.

MR. WRIGHT: Yes.

THE COURT: And again, you just want him to refer ToO
the law to explain his actions. Like I thought I was in
compliance with the law because tnis is what I understocd or I
—— T did thnis because I tried to e in compliance with the law
cr what have you.

MR. STAUDAHER: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. I think —-—

MR. STAUDAHER: And to that degree, if I understand
correctly now, that will be a stipulated exhibit with the
exception of those pages which will be a Court's exhibit; 1is
that fair?

THE COURT: Ricght, startinc on what's stamped
GJDesai-000470. And is that satisfactory, Mr. Wright?

MR. WRIGHT: Yes.

THE COURT: Without limitation. All right. Yeah,
you can just pull it off. TIt's States proposed Exhibits 65 sO

the clerk will just remove the back part. She'll make that
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Court's exhibit next in order. I think we're on four or five.

MR.
THE

recollection

STAUDAHER: That's fine.
COURT: Ancd then that's available to refresh the
of the witness c¢r whatever. Okay?
STAUDAEER: That's fine.
COURT: 2All right, bring them 1in.
(Jury reconvered at 2:40 p.m.)

COURT: All right. Ccurt is now back in session.

The record shculd reflect the presence of the State, the

defendants ard their counsel, the cfficers of the Court and

the lacies and gentlemen of the jury.

And
witness.

MR.

Mr. Staudaher, you may call the State's next

STAUDAHER: The State calls Dr. Thomas Yee Lo the

stand, Your Ecnor.

THE

THOMAS YEE, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORN

CLERK: Please be seated. If you could please

state and spell veur first and last name for the record.

THE
T-h-o-m—-a-s,

THE

WITNESS: First name is Thomas, spelled
last name is Yee, spelled Y-e-e.
COURT: Thank ycu. Mr. Stauvdaher.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

o

A

Doctor, what dc you do for a living?

I'm a anesthesiologist.
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C And can you -- before we get intc the substance
cf your testimony, can you give us & little pbit of your
background and training which led yocu to becore &
anesthesioloccist?

A Yes. I train at the UC San Diego, that's
University of California San Diege anesthesiology residency
program. I finished the treiring in 1993. I passed the Board
certification by the Americen Board cf Arestnesiology in 1994.
And since July of 1993 I have keen in private practice in Las
Vegas continuously.

o And as far as —— &and I mean n thcse —— there's
different types of doctors obviocusly and you're &n
anesthesiologist. Could you tell us what anesthesiclogists
do?

A Anesthesiologists, the mair jop functions are
threefold. Number one is to assure a patient's safety in the
surgical process. Number twc is tc ensure patient comfort.

In other words, nct feeling tre pain, the stress from surgery.
And the thirc part of a anesthesiologist;s jok is to
resuscitate a patient if they was to have any kind of negative
event during the surgery, during the anesthesia. In that
situation the anesthesiologist is in charge of resuscitation.

C So are you kind of & depencent practitioner in
the sense that you —— you basicelly provide services to other

doctors, surceons and the like?
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A Yes. Similar to pathologists and radiologist,
anesthes’ologist is a consultant service where the primary
doctors, such as surgeons or coctors that do procedures, would
call upon us to gc and provide the assistant service.

e Now are doctors like vourself the only cne who
can prcvide that kind of service?

A Wwell, the American Bcard of Anesthesiclogy would
like tc Zhink thet. In other part of world, usually it's the
M.D., The dcctors who has had the necessary training that
provide anesthesiclogy service. And in this country there's &
—— in some part of this country the service provided many by
M.D. aresthesiclogists who are Board certified and some other
parts cf thne country it's a team approach with such M.D.s
workinc in conjunction with Certified Registered Nurse
Anesthet.st, CRNAs.

C And you said team approach, does that mean that
typically the —— the CRNA, if we were talking about them as a
Certifiec Recistered Nurse Anesthetist, that they are not
complete_y independent?

A This is controversial in —— in the United States
right now. For most of the history cof anesthesia practice,
anesthesiolccists either provide the service themselves or
supervise the CRNAs directly. But in recent years, there has
been a movement coming from the CRNA community to petition the

government and different insurance companies to allow them to
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work without M.D. anesthesiology supervision.

C And I'm going to set that aside for Just a
second and I want to talk to you about regular physicians,
doctors who have gone to medical schcol, O.D.s or M.D.s,
whatever. Can any physician just do the kinds cf things you
do? 1 mean, I know that we've talked about Certified
Registered Nurse Anesthetists who have special training like
yourself, but can just any family practice doctor or anybody
just do the anesthesia work that ycu do?

A That will be very risky.

C Why would that be?

A For example, there are —— there are subtle
inside information regarding the —- the medications, regarding
the physiology, regarding the bodies, the breain's reaction to
anesthetics that takes years of studying and training to
enakble an anesthesiologist te do & good job. And T don't
think coctors who haven't gone thrcugh that kind of training
can provide the kind of high cegree of professional service
that Board certified anesthesiologists can prcevide.

C And you —— when you mentiorec team approach a
while ago with regard to a doctor whe has or works with a
CRNA, have you ever been in a situation like that where yocu've
worked with CRNAs before?

A In my residency 20 years aco at UC San Diego, as

a resicdent T have worked with, side by side with CRNAs but not
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in a superviscry role.
I o So that was back then. From that point to the
present, have you ever supervised any CRNAs?

A Back in the early 1%90s when I first came to Las
Vegas there were a couple surmers where when I went to
California to do temporary wcrk lasting a few cays, and in
that setting in this Los Angeles hcspital, I have supervisec
CRNA. BRut it was just for, altogether probably two days.

c So you've workec¢ with them in your residency and
you had a very limited supervisory role with them in -- at
UCLA when ycou were there doinc some —— what was it called?

A It is called —— the Latin word is locum tenens,
Il it's temporary work. Ard the hospital was Los Angeles Medical
Center in downtown LA.

l C Since you've come out to Las Vegas, 1n the -as

l Vegas valley, working wrerever you've worked, hospitals,
clinics, ambuletory care centers, anything like that, have vyou
Il ever taken on an active supervisory role of Certified
Registered Nurse Anesthetists?

A No.

C Now we're going to get to issues for that -- cf
that later cn, but I want to co through a couple of other
things first. With regard tc your job when you're in —
you're in the —- if you could just walk through it with me if

you car, the kinds of things that you do day to day when
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you're dealing with -- 1 know you Go carciac surgery; 1s that
correct —-

A Yes.

o) —_ ¢or at least the anesthesia for 2t? And I

know you've cone and you've done endcscoplic procedures 1n an

ft v

cutpatient sort of setting; is thet fa

A Yes.

C Obviously they -- I imagine they have
differences in how you would approach the patients and what
you would do. But the preparat on in goinc —— before — of
the things you do before vou actually deal with the patient
and then how you deal with the patient, is it pretty similar
though initially?

A It is similar, ves.

Q And so explain that to us. I mean talking about
you've never seen the patient before, ycu cet a call I assume
that says, hey, lcok, I'd like you tc come tc this facility on
this date to perfcrm anesthesia on this patient. Is that king
cf how it works?

A Yes. Las Vegas is different from most cther
cities. In other places anesthesiclogy croups would have
contract with certain hospital end all the surcery or
anesthesia procedures will be done by members of that group.
las Vecas is a surgeon request system, where the surgeons or

the doctors requiring anesthesia service would ceall the
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anesthes:olccist's office either a few days before cr —- or
just the one dey before to ask for a certain anesthesiologist
to come to such and such facility at certain time tc do
certaln cases.

S

O
Q

cnce 1 cet an eppointment, I will show up at the
hospital or the facility. I would check the anesthesiology
instrumerts, the ecuipment and anesthesia machine. Basically
lock over the -- the druigs, especially the emergency drugs.
And then I would oc interview the patient. I would ask the
patient about his ohysica: crnditions and whether he had
allergies tc medications of any kind. Whether he nhas had
problems with pricr anesthesia experience. Anc then I would
do a —— & very brief physicel exam, see 1f he can open his
mouth wicde ercugn, whether there's any airway problem, listen
to his chest to see if he has ongoing pneumonia or bronchitis
or asthma attack and listen to his heart. Then T would
probably start the IV on the patient, the intravenous.

And then I would go back to the operating room to get
the anesthesia equipment and the machine ready and —— and then
after ~he nurse nas prought the patient into the operating
room, we would put the monitcrs on the patient and —— and
start civing the patient anesthesia.

o) 3o let's —— let's break down that a little more.
So you —— ycu described actually putting your hands on the

patient, I mean listening to their heart and their lungs and
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so forth. Does that matter? Why would that be -“mportant?

A This is particularly important if & patient —-
if a patient was coming from —-- from home, from outpatient
settine where he hasn't been examined by any physician that
day or recently. If a patient had been in the hospital for a
while, for example a patient in the hospital for a heart
attack and is about to co for heart surgery, that patient has
had exraustive examinations. But for a patient coming in
fresh from home, 1 fregquently would be the first M.D. tc see
that patient that day. So if there were new development, for
example, if the patient was having an asthma attack, wheezing,
T have to listen to the patient to find out. And because that
—— that micht change my —-- my treatment course. I

cancel the case or give medication to treat the asthma first

o So you have the ability to cancel the case
yourself?
A Yes.
# ) So I'm the surgeon, I've got a patient, I've got

them at the hospital, thev're ready to go, they've been —-
gone through ail their preoperative stuff, get back intc the

room ard you don't like what ycu see.

A Yes.

@) You can say we're not doing it, we're nct going
forwarc.

A Yeah. I've canceled many cases in my 20-year
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career.
C Well, what if I as the surceon was -- or the

surgeor said, nope, you're gcing to do it anyway?

A Well, I can refuse.

C Have vou been ir situations like that where
you've —— obviously ycu said ycu've canceled cases, but where
the surgeon may have -- or the person doing the procedure may

not have been happy that vou canceled the case?

A They —-- they by and large, they would respect —-
respect my professicnal opinion. If I say it's unsafe to
proceed, the surgeons usually listen to me.

C Have vou ever been in situations where the —-
the surgeon or whcmever dictates tc you how you do your Jjob?

A There —— there were a couple that tried but, you
know, it wasn't pleasant, the discussion.

C So if they said, for example, ycu know, you're
going to do it tnis pariticular way, use these particular drugs
or not use these drugs, would that be sort of stepping into
your area of expertise?

A Yes, 1 would be very offended. And when that
did happen ir my career, you know, the discussicn was very
short and we, you know, 1 stcopped the case anyhow. Because
ultimately, whether the case proceed or not, 1t's up to me,
it's not up to the surgeon.

o Now, even though you're in the room, whatever
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facility it is, and there's a physician who is doing a
procedure, can —-- who's in charge of the patient at that
point? Is it you or is it the doctor? Are ycu both in
charge? How does 1t work?

A T would say it's me because in rost surgical
cases I wouild be more familiar with meintaininc vatient safety
and if something was to go wrong, I will be the perscn
resuscitatinc the patient, nct & surgeon.

C Have you had situations occur where 1f something

unexpected happened, even on a mMincr procedure, and you had to

intervene in —-— in kind of a big way?
A Yes.
C So that's not urheard cf?
A No.
) Now as part of the —- when you go through and

you have somebody come in and you do this eveluation, ycu say
you typically do that out somep.ace and ~hen the petient —-—
you go ready yourself and the patient’s broucht back to the
TOOoN.

A There's often a preop holding area wiere we
interview the patients.

C Have you ever been in a situaticn where you
don't do that at all until the patient just rclls in the door,
you ask them a few questions, put them to sleep end you're

done or -- cr anything like that?
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A That has happened on rare OCCasions.
C Okay. Would that be something that would be
reasonab.e or & regular basis to not spend that kind of time

with a patient?

il

A If I -— as _ong as 1 had the time and

t

cpportunity tc interview and examine the patient, the

location's not és important. The importance the -— the
importance is the orocess.

“ c Sc when you say interview, you would still go
Ilthrough the things vou zalked about but it might be in the

Flactual procecure room.

A Yes.

9 Now, you know what a history and physical is, do
you not?

A Yes.

C Is that something that you do or is that

somethinc that needs to be dcne before the patient has a

procedure?

| A 1=~ needs 70 be dcne by the admitting doctor or
the surgeon.
C So if one is dene, is that something you

incorporate in asking guestions of the person you're about

ready to do a procedure On?
A Yes.

C And putting them to sleep so to speak?
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A Yes.
C Now when we talked about —-- or cf the CRNAs and
your —— you had scme —- some limited information —— or

involvement with them in a supervisory capacity and then you
worked with them you said T think. In those situations you've
also mentioned it again, a team approach. How cr what is the
interaction between —— in the situations you've been involved
with, with a CRNA and the doctor? Meaning you a&s the doctor,
not maybe the —-— not the doctor doing the procedure?

A The team approach is this. The CRNA would go
interview the patient preop and would come to me to give a
very brief report on the patient. If there was no difficult
issue I would tell the CRNA to proceed. If there was a
problem, I will go interview the patient myself to go over the
particular points. And then the CRNA will bring the patient
into the room. I —— I think the standarc that we practice
with is an M.D. should supervise between cne to -- at mest
four CRNAs at any given time. And so if I wesn't pusy —-

MR. WRIGHT: I'm going to object to the relevance of
this.

MR. STAUDAHER: The relevance of this —-—

THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: So I would be in the same rocm to
basically look over the shoulders cf the CRNA as he proceed to

give the patient anesthesia. And when the case is underway
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and everything's going smoothly, [ may step out of the room
and go check on the other CRNAs.
BY MR. STAUDAHER:

c So there's criticel times that you feel that you
would have to actually be in the rcom with the CRNA?

A Yes.

THE COURT: Is —- do vou do that all the time or ZJust
in days when you're not that busy and -- Or where ycu don't
have, you know, ycur own patient or whatever?

THE WITNESS: I've had very limited interaction with
CRNAs, like I said.

MR. WRIGHT: 1 object, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Can I -—-

MR. WRIGHT: He hasn't done any of this.

THE COURT: -- can I see counsel at the bench?

(Cff-record bench conference.)

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Staucaher, you may
proceec. You need to focus in to get to this case.

MR. STAUDAEER: Right.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C And I'm just talking about your involvement. SO
is it fair to say that at least your direct involvement with
CRNAs in the past has been —-- and not talking about any
national standards at this point, but that you felt that it

would be sort of in person supervision; is that fair? You had
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to be there when that -— when things were coing on?

A Yes, but I have to stress this is not personal
experience cnly. Just like when we practice medicine, there
are some things that we have to do. And this is not cut of my
—— my own hypcthetical thinking. This supervision that the
M.D.s see —- has to be in the room lookirc over the shoulder
cf a CRNA. When things are stable I will wa_k to enother room
to look over the shoulder of the other CRNA --

MR. WRIGHT: Objection, this is all hvpotnetical.

THE COURT: That's —-- that's sustainec. We need to
focus —-

MR. WRIGHT: And he's not an expert.

THE COURT: -- in on specifics.

MR. STAUDAHER: So I'll mcve on Lo & —— LG &
different area.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. STAUDAHER:

C Are you familiar with the crug prepofcl?

A Yes.

C Does it have another name?

A Diprivan.

C So same name —— or two different nemes for the

same thing?
A Yes.

@) What is 1it?
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C Now I want you to tell me how you went about
identifying and ccllecting the samples of those individuals on
that list.

A Our office of epidemiology identified the
patients that had procecures on the two cates in questicn and
they set up appointments to have the people come in to have
their blood drawn or they had us ccntact the commercial
laboratories to see if there were samples that were available.

o And you did that for all of the patients on
theose two dates, correct?

A That's correct.

o Let me see if I can get this on here. This 1s a
chart of all the pecple infected on September 21st, 2007. Do

these names comport with the list that you compiled and

tested?

THE COURT: Are vou able to ——

A I'm not sure what compcrt means.

THE COURT: Are you asking if they have the same
names?

MR. SANTACROCE: Yes, sorry.
THE COURT: Are they the same names?
A Yes, they are.
BY MR. SANTACROCE:
Q Those are the same names?

A Yes.
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C So there's nopocy that's on your list that's
cmitted from this particular chart, correct?

A Can you rephrase —- got double negetives in
there. Can you rephrase that or what —— I'm —— 2'm —— tell me
again what that question was?

C The names on this chart, which vou've said are
the same as the names on your list, those are 1. the veople
that were infected on this particular date, Septemoer 21st,
2007.

A So I only did the laboratory testing comoonentc
cf this and —— and I can't really speak to the relevance of
whether or not these people were infected.

c I'm not asking you tc speak to the relevance of
it, I'm asking you merely to look at your list and lock at
this list anc vou said they were the same. Anc I'm asking vou
were all -- those all the pecple on that date that were
infected that you tested?

MS. WECKERLY: Objection, calls for speculation.
There's no way this witness can answer that.

THE COURT: Yeah. I think she's alreadv said that
it's beyond the scope of her knowledge or her rcle.

MR. SANTACROCE: Well, she already said that that was
all the people that were infected cn that date or they would
have appearec on your list.

MS. WECKERLY: No, that's incorrect.
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MR. STAUDAHER: Your Honor, may we approach?

MS. WECKERLY: She said those people came in ——

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. WECKERLY: -- and were tested.

THE COURT: Richt. That was sustained. Mavbe 1f you
could esk the question a different way. Of the people who
came in are those all the pecple that were infected?

BY MK. SANTACROCE:

c The people that came in, were these the only
pecrle that were infected?

THE COURT: Are vyou able to read that?

TAE WITNESS: Yes.

TAE COURT: Okay.

A The laboratory, as a laboratorian, 1 don't

identify wnc's infected. 1 cnly identify what the test

ks

L

esults are.
BY MR. SANTACROCE:

C Well, isn't that the same thing? You got the
test results back and you would determine if they were
infected or not.

A The lab results are cne component. The — the
-— the — I con't interpret the lab results. Sc I have the
lab results that come in and that's not within my scope.
it C Ma'am, did you compile this chart?

THE COURT: Okay. Do you mean like you don't look at
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the numbers on the lab results and say, okay, this means

somebody's infected or that means somebody isn't infected?
That's a conclusicn that's made by some —- somecne else?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Ckay.
| BY MR. SANTACROCE:
C You do —— you did compile that chart that ycu
testified tco, correct?
A I did compile the chart.
| C And vou obtained information in order to compile
F that chart, correct?
1 : A That's correct.
@ And the information you compiled were these

individuals on your chart and which is shown or the monitor,

—

| were infectecd with hepatitis C, correct?

A The information on the chart listed the test
| results for the people who hac testing performed.

C And those people had hepatitis C.

" A They have positive test results.

o And if there were any other people on those
dates that had positive test results, they would appear on
your chart, correct?

MS. WECKERLY: Objection, Your Honor.

" MR. STAUDAHER: Objection —- I'm sorry.

MS. WECKERLY: That's not correct.
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THE COURT: Qkay. Rephrase your question.
BY MR. SANTACROC:z:

C 1f there were any other people that came in and
were tested and tested positive, they would be on ycur chart,
COrrect?

M

&

WECKERLY: Objection.
THE CCURT: OCverruled.
BY MR. SANTACROCZ:
C You can answer.
THE COURT: Accordinc to the results that you had
received.
A Couald you repeat it again, please?
BY MR. SANTACROCE:

Yes.

L)

THE COURT: Accordinc to the results that you had
received, if somecne tested positive, would ycu have included
that or vouar chart? |

THE WITNESS: What -- it depends on where the testing
was performec so —-

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

THE WITNESS: —-- if the testing was performed at our
facility or that we had collected the samples and were
tracking it, then yes, it would be on the list.

BY MR. SANTACROCE:

C And ycu testified that you tracked all the
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people on those dates, correct?

MS. WECKERLY: No. Thet's —— objection --

THE COURT: Okay. That's sustained —-—

MS. WECKERLY: —- that misstates her testimony.

THE COURT: -- that misstates the evicence.
ft BY MR. SANTACROCE:
it C How did you get a list of the pecple that were
treated at the clinic on September 21st?

A I did not receive that list.

C Okay. How did you receive the names that appear
on this chart or on your chart?

A That list —- that information came from our
office of epidemiclogy.

@ So you were just given a list of names from the
cffice of epidemiclogy and you went out and ccllected samples
l and sent them to the CDC, correct?

A We set up —- our office of epidemiology set up
appointments with people that needed to have to come in to
have testing perfocrmed.

] And is there a list cf those pecple that came 1in
and were tested on those dates?

A Yes, there is.

o And do you have that 1list?

A Yes, 1 do.
C

Is it fair to say that more pecple came in and
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| were tested than are on your chert?

A The chart that's this exhibit?

o Yes.
it
A Yes.
C And is it falr tc say that more people con July

25th, 2007 came in and were tested than appear on your chart?
A Yes.
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